Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Rochdale North Township Action and
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee
Thursday, 16th January, 2020
6.00 pm.
Hollingworth (Room 108ABC), First Floor,
Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

5

Minutes
To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale North Township
Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee held 26th September
2019.

4-6

6

Norden Area Forum

7 - 10

To note the Minutes of the meeting of Norden Area Forum held 17th
September 2019.
7

Spotland and Falinge Area Forum

11 - 17

To note the Minutes of the meeting of Spotland and Falinge Area
Forum held 19th September 2019.
8

Healey Area Forum

18 - 22

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Healey Area Forum held
17th October 2019.
9

Central Rochdale Area Forum

23 - 26

To note the Minutes of the meeting of Central Rochdale Area Forum
held 11th November 2019.
10

Objections to Traffic Order - Spotland Road, Rochdale

27 - 37

To consider objections received to a Road Traffic Order at Spotland
Road, Rochdale
11

Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Rooley Moor Road Area,
Rochdale

38 - 68

To consider objections received to a Traffic Regulation Order at
Rooley Moor Road Area, Rochdale
12

Rochdale North Township Funds 2019/20
To consider applications for assistance from the Rochdale North
Township Fund 2019/20

69 - 153

Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Wendy Cocks
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Michael Holly
Councillor Rachel Massey
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Faisal Rana
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Peter Winkler
For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Committee and Constitutional Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU
Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Agenda Item 5
ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP ACTION & RESOURCES DELEGATED
SUB
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 26th September 2019
PRESENT: Councillor Cocks (Vice Chair in the Chair); Councillors Gartside,
Heakin, Holly, Massey, Wazir and Winkler.
OFFICERS: G. Finch (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. Thompson
(Resources Directorate)
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Six members of the public.
APOLOGIES
9. Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ali Ahmed, Iftikhar
Ahmed, Sultan Ali, O’Neill and Rana.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
10. There were no declarations of interests.
MINUTES
11. Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of Rochdale North Township Action and
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee held 4th July 2019, be approved and
signed by the Chair as a correct record.
SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
12. Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of Spotland and Falinge Area Forum, held
27th June 2019, be noted.
CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM
13. Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of Central Rochdale Area Forum, held 19th
August 2019, be noted.
ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2019/20
14. The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of
Neighbourhoods which updated Members on the revenue and capital
expenditure commitments and balances of Rochdale North Township Fund
2019/20, to enable the Sub-Committee to allocate funds to proposed projects.
The Sub-Committee were asked to note the expenditure, commitments and
balances of Rochdale North Township Funds 2019/20, as detailed in
Appendices 1 and 2 of the submitted report, the decisions made under
delegated authority, as detailed at Appendix 3 to the submitted report, and to
consider and approve, defer or refuse the allocation of funds to proposed
projects detailed in Appendix 4 of the submitted report. Members of the
Rochdale North Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee

Page 4

were requested to note that the Townships and Communities Manager had
assessed all of the proposed projects that were considered for funding against
the criteria of eligibility for Rochdale North Township Fund projects and any
specific risks were identified within the report.
In considering the funding applications the Sub-Committee received oral
representations the applicant’s and/or their representatives, who were in
attendance at the meeting.
Alternatives considered - in considering the report, Members were asked to
decide whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects/schemes
as appropriate.
Resolved:
1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances of the Rochdale
Township Funds 2019/20, as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the submitted
report be noted;
2. That the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix
3 of the submitted report be noted;
3. That the Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the
Chair, Vice Chair and opposition spokesperson of the Sub-Committee, be
given delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects;
4. That applications for Township Funds 2019/20, (as outlined at Appendix 4
of the submitted report); and be dealt with as follows:Ref
RP/09/19
RP/10/19

Project name/applicant
Rochdale Town Centre
Festive Lights
OverCome

RP/11/19

Skills4Sport
Programme

TC/02/19

Eden Street Lighting

Page 5

Decision
An award of £2,212
from the Projects Fund
N award of £2,166 from
the Projects Fund
An award of £3,975
from the Projects Fund,
with the balance of
£3,000 to be delegated
to the Townships and
Communities Manager
to determine in
consultation with the
Chair, Vice Chair and
Opposition
Spokesperson of the
Sub-Committee.
Consideration of the
application be deferred
to the next meeting of
the Sub-Committee and
a representative from
the Council’s Street
Lighting Team be
requested to attend to

TC/15/19
TC/16/19

Rochdale Sports Club
Major Refurbishment
RWAS Healey Dell –
Accessibility for all

respond to member’s
questions thereon.
An award of £6,525
from the Capital Fund
An award of £3,720
from the Capital Fund

5. The Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair,
Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson of the Sub-Committee, be granted
delegated authority to make decisions on any deferred projects;
Reasons for the decision:
The recommendations in the report were presented as management of the
Rochdale North Township Fund is a function that is delegated to the Rochdale
North Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee. Rochdale
North Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s
community and environment, and realise the Township’s priorities and which
will enable the Sub-Committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale
North Township Fund to ensure the continued efficient and effective use of the
funds.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes

Page 6

Agenda Item 6
NORDEN AREA FORUM
Tuesday 17 September 2019
Norden Methodist Church, Edenfield Road
Norden, Rochdale
MINUTES

Present:

N. Morrell (Chair) and approx. 20 members of the public

Councillors: Councillors Gartside, Holly and Winkler
Officers:

R. Hudson (Rochdale Council, Townships & Engagement Officer)
M. Reynolds (Rochdale Council, Community Safety ASB Officer)
PC M. Giblin (GMP) and PCSO T. Tynan (GMP)
C. Heathcote and T. Dawson (United Utilities)

Apologies:

6 members of the public

1.
INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
The Chair introduced himself and officers present, and welcomed all to the meeting. He referred to
the code of conduct and he asked all to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.
2.
MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 21 May 2019 were approved as a correct record.
MATTERS ARISING
PC Andrew Harper & Cyril Brandford (Methodist Church)
The Chair held a minutes silence in remembrance.
Tour of Britain
Councillor Winkler gave an update on one of the biggest sporting events to come through the village
in recent years. Three months in the planning with local ward Councillors, the Township Office and
the Council. Thanks to V. White of the Townships Office for all her assistance, the Council’s
Highways Department for its remedial works to the roads in advance of the race, Fab Dance from
Rochdale for the entertainment, the local businesses and public houses who all got involved, P.
Ellison for assistance and also signage and also to J. Irving at The Community Café at Norden Old
Library for arranging activities aimed at children. Everyone should be proud of their involvement.
The Chair seconded the thanks.
CCTV
Councillors are working hard along with officers to bring this scheme to the village sometime this
year and costings are being looked into at present.
Rochdale in Bloom
Decision day is Friday 1 November 2019. The Chair of the forum thanked the committee and
wished them luck.
Scout Moor
A discussion was held about the future decommissioning of the Scout Moor Wind Farm and

Page 7

examples of other issues experienced in locations in Yorkshire and the Lake District. Forum
member A. McKeown explained that she had recently attended the Public Inquiry into the repowering of Kirkby Moor Wind Farm in the Lake District, where the cost of decommissioning a wind
turbine is approximately £75,000 each. At the present time, Rochdale has 7-8 years before this
situation will need to occur, however, answers are needed beforehand as there is little clarity as to
many questions being asked regarding proper plans for their removal. Because of requests at a
previous forum, Councillor Winkler wrote to the Council’s Planning Department asking a number of
specific questions about Scout Moor and its decommissioning. The reply received has not given
specific answers to a number of those questions.
Footpaths Update
J. Oliver, Secretary for the Rochdale Rambling Club, provided the update. The areas he has
recently looked into regarding stiles and gate matters include Woodhouse Lane, Keeper’s Drive and
Shawfield Drive. He reported that he had received good support as always from the Council’s
Rights of Way Officer, J. Simpson. A resident thanked J. Oliver for his assistance provided recently
regarding an issue to the rear footpath near his property.
3.
GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
Crime statistics
PC Giblin advised on the following crime statistics since the last forum (19 May 2019):
Residential burglaries
12 reported in total. Occurred primarily at night via patio doors.
Business burglaries
2 were reported.
Theft from motor vehicle
10 reported in total. Increased patrols have been made.
Taking of motor vehicle
2 reported in total.
Criminal damage
12 reported in total. Occurred at various locations; 6 at filling stations.
UPDATES
Neighbourhood Speed Watch
A Neighbourhood Speed Watch initiative, subject to volunteers, will be scheduled again in the
Norden ward sometime in the future. An ANPR vehicle may also be made available to the ward.
Councillor Holly thanked GMP on behalf of the local Ward Councillors, the Chair and residents for
their assistance with this issue.
Pub Watch
The Pub Watch Scheme now has 8/9 pubs involved and three meetings have taken place.
Meetings are held quarterly throughout the year.
Operation Dragster
Operation Dragster took place on 10 August 2019 and GMP thanked United Utilities for their
support. Unfortunately, heavy rainfall resulted in the Operation being cancelled due to health and
safety concerns for the bikers. Another initiative will be carried out before the year end.
Computer System – GMP
The system is still a work in progress and unfortunately it has had a knock on effect on the
production of the newsletter which gets circulated to residents.

Page 8

Advice for residents
With the dark nights drawing in soon as we approach Autumn/Winter, GMP’s advice to residents is
to keep their property and vehicles securely locked and any valuables out of sight. Also the use of
timers for lights was recommended.
4.
WARD FUND
Allocations/amounts for the Members Fund and Ward Fund as discussed at the first Township
Committee of this financial year are as follows:
Members Fund - £2,000 per Elected Member
Ward Fund - £8,000
The Chair advised the forum that the Norden Area Forum Sub Group will meet mid-October to
discuss any ideas for new projects/schemes to be funded, and any further recommendations are
welcomed for consideration. Contact your local Ward Councillor or the Township Office to discuss.
5.
COUNCILLOR UPDATE
Councillor Winkler
A successful community safety event held last year will be replicated on Saturday 19 October 2019
at 10am–2pm in Norden Bowling Club. Councillors, Police and Community Safety Officers from the
Council will dispense safety and security advice to residents on an open invitation.
Councillor Winkler also spoke about a push to set up a Neighbourhood Watch Scheme for Norden
(not Homewatch) as an information sharing exercise. Residents would commit only a very small
amount of time to the initiative to keep local neighbours informed of any local matters of concern.
The scheme would also assist the Police in their attempts to share and receive intelligence and
serve as a network of information for all concerned.
Councillor Gartside
Councillor Gartside reiterated the need for the formation of a Neighbourhood Watch Scheme for
Norden stating that any commitment by residents would be minimal in terms of time, yet beneficial
to the cause.
He advised there is a heritage weekend arranged in the borough this weekend from 10am – 12
noon whereby residents are welcome at certain places of worship including churches and mosques
with refreshments available.
A new freestanding bin has been installed at the top of Caldershaw Road to replace the former old
one.
Councillor Holly
The traffic regulation order for Elbut Lane/Bury and Rochdale Old Road to assist concerns for safety
has been submitted for public consultation by Bury Council’s Highways Department. This traffic
regulation order is supported by the Birtle Trust. The Chair called for a show of support from the
forum.
The parking survey that was carried out at the beginning of July by the Council’s Highways Officers
will now be compiled into recommendations. Councillors will be updated first and then will in turn
update the residents accordingly on any plans agreed.
Works to replace fencing and a gate adjacent to Broadstone Close have been arranged by Ward
Councillors and part-funded with the Council’s Environmental Management Department. The
improvements will ensure that access to Caldershaw Green is not open to attract unwanted antisocial behaviour/activities.
6.
OPEN FORUM
United Utilities – Presentation
C. Heathcote and T. Dawson (United Utilities - Catchment Controllers for the local reservoirs) gave

Page 9

an update. United Utilities (UU) own a total of 177 dams, the average age of which is 130 years old
with the last dam being constructed in the 1970’s. Operating under the 1975 Reservoir Act, UU
inspect all the tunnels, towers and pitches and do a full walk around of all their dams and reservoirs
every 48 hours, compiling any issues into a report. Officers are also on-call. Every six months the
dams and reservoirs are also inspected by an engineer and every ten years an inspection is carried
out by an external engineer who compiles a report of any improvements that are needed to the
structure. UU have £50 million in their budget for dams and reservoirs for 2020-2025. The
Environment Agency also report bi-annually on dams/reservoirs producing a list of any ‘at-risk’
structures.
Residents queried concerns recently because of the incident at the Toddbrook Reservoir. UU
stated there is a robust system for reporting issues and test exercises are continually carried out for
risk management reasons. A report/feedback is still pending on this incident.
The Chair thanked C. Heathcote and T. Dawson on behalf of the forum and Norden residents for the
excellent work the controllers and UU provide to the environment of the local Moors under their
ownership. The approach of UU to the preservation of the Moors and measures to eliminate
inappropriate use was widely praised.
Bamford Hall – Planning application
S. Cresswell, resident from the Bamford ward, gave an update. He explained how a third attempt to
gain planning permission to build a property, nine times the size of a normal house, on the green
belt land in the grounds of Bamford Hall has recently been made. He appealed for support again
from the forum and Norden residents to register an objection with the Council’s Planning Officer
dealing with the application. The Chair requested that forum members express their view on the
matter (by a show of hands). Ten residents expressed their support for the rejection of this
application; no residents expressed support for the application. The Birtle Trust has also submitted
an objection letter to the development.
Bamford – Green belt land
A. Smith, Councillor from the Bamford ward, gave an update. She expressed her support for the
previous item of the objection to the planning application for the property on the grounds of Bamford
Hall. She also reiterated the fact that residents can contact the Council’s Planning Officer to gain
any information they require and pass on their opinions in respect of applications. A resident spoke
about her objection to another planning application at Higher Clough at Carr Wood as she
considered it is not in-keeping with the local area and it will destroy local history with its demolition.
A number of members expressed concern about the impact of inappropriate development in the
green belt. A motion was then proposed urging officers to utilise the provisions within the National
Planning Policy Framework so as to give maximum protection to local green belt. Eleven members
voted in favour of the motion, none voted against.
Former Turner Brothers Asbestos Site
M. Coats, resident from the Spotland ward, gave an update. The issues surrounding this matter
were highlighted again to those in attendance, especially the fact that local residents expressed the
opinion that they are not kept informed. There has not been any update in the past two and a half
years due to problems communicating with the private company based abroad who own the site. It
was reported that the on-site security guards have been reduced from two to one and there is a
continual issue with illegal fly tipping on the site. A recent positive update is that the local MP has
written to the government minister in respect of the site. The Chair applauded the efforts of the
action group for the site in seeking the highest levels of security and public health protection for its
future.
7.
DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
Tuesday 10 December 2019 at 7.00pm
Norden Methodist Church, Edenfield Road, Norden

Page 10

Agenda Item 7
SPOTLAND AND FALINGE AREA FORUM
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 19 September 2019
PRESENT: Councillors Cocks and Rana, P. Massey (Chair) and approximately 18
members of the public.
OFFICERS: PC Jones, PC Hameed, PCSO Robinson (GMP) L. Wardle
(Enforcement Officer), Mark Reynolds (Community Safety),Tracey Knight ( Township
and Engagement Officer)
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Massey and 9 members of the public
WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
145
The Chair introduced himself and officers present and welcomed all to the meeting,
he also asked all present that the Code of Conduct be adhered to throughout the
meeting.
The forum was informed of the apologies that have been received.
GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING
146
PC Jones, PC Hameed, PCSO Robinson attended for this item.
The forum was informed of the following issues:
1. Violence on the Greave Estate – investigations are ongoing. A police
operation has been in place since the incident with increased Police patrols of
the area. Updates will be provided when available
2. Speed Enforcement – GMP are aware of the problems. Officers are actively
pursuing the calibrated speed gun equipment and necessary training, at
which point regular operations will be carried out
3. Anti-Social Behaviour – Officers are continuing patrols of hot spot areas; there
has been a decrease in reported incidents, resident were encouraged to
continue reporting issues via the GMP website or 101
4. Operation Dragster – incidences of off-road vehicles are high however the
number of reported incidents has decreased. A recent operation failed due to
the inclement weather, further operations will depend on the number of
reported incidents received.
5. Theft from Motor Vehicle – The PCSO has been patrolling the hotspot areas
which appear to have had a positive impact on the number of crimes reported.
There has been at least three incidents on 15 September - the crimes indicate
that valuables were left visible, which could easily be avoided.

Page 11

6. Crime Prevention – The forum were reminded to lock their vehicles and
remove valuables; use burglar alarms at home; lock all windows and doors;
use timer switches; keep car keys out of reach.
7. Falinge Park Partnership Fun day – Was a very successful day, £450 raised
for the Mayors Charity and £111 for the Blood Bikes Charity
8. Officers – New and Future Plans – A new school based Officer is in post, she
will work closely with the local school which will improve the cohesion and
result in fewer incidents.
9. New IT – the new system has experienced some teething problems in
particular not being able to produce crime figures and statistics, this is being
worked on and things are improving.
10. Police Surgery – is taking place on Monday 14 October at Spotland Library
everyone is welcome to attend.
11. Priorities – ASB & drug dealing; Off Road Bikes; Speeding
A resident asked if there is an opportunity for cross border joint working, GMP
advised Yorkshire Police don’t have a dedicated off-road bike team
The PCSO advised that he is actively working to gather intelligence on the drug
dealing in the ward.
Comments were made regarding the intimidating behaviour of the beggars at the St
Mary’s Gate junction. Resident where advised the issues are being dealt with and are
being processed for court.
A discussion took place regarding GMP’s policy on setting off fireworks in regards to
complaints around the former Dexine site. GMP officers use their discretion when
dealing with complaints of this nature.
Streetcheck.co.uk website provides information relating to crime statistics relative to
an individual’s postcode.
MINUTES OF LAST MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
147
The minutes of the Area Forum meeting held on Thursday 27 June 2019 were
approved as a correct record subject to the following change.
Amend Minute 136
Remove - A Ward Councillor commented that consultation had taken place in the
area and the changes made to the proposals at the recent meeting were based on
discussions held with the Community.
Add – Sounding have been taken by a Ward Councillor and suggestions for changes
made.

Page 12

Matters Arising included:
Action 13 Spotland Bridge Junction - A resident asked for an update and was
advised as per the circulated update sheet that a discussion has taken place
between Township and Highways. A formal response form Highways is still awaited.
Action 2 Missing bins – Cllr Cocks update that the bins have been removed for
safety, they have been relocated nearby.
Action 7 TBA progress – An officer was unable to attend, an update had been
provided and circulated prior to the meeting. A discussion took place regarding the
need for an officer to attend; a show of hands identified this not to be a priority for the
forum as only two residents were in favour of an officer attending. Further
discussions took place regarding the TBA land being in private ownership; The TBA
site not on the current list of priorities for the Healey Area Forum; the recent
correspondence form Tony Lloyd MP can be viewed on the website; Japanese
knotweed is visible on site; the erosion of the riverbank.
Action - Request the TBA information on the RBC website is kept up-to-date
Action – Seek Council advice regarding the knotweed issue
Action – Request a copy of the technical assessment of the stabilisation of the river
banking
MEMBERS/WARD FUNDS
148
Members Fund Balances
Cllr Cocks
£2,000
Cllr Massey
£1,988
Cllr Rana
£0
Ward fund balance

£6,900

Northern Baroque Orchestra presented a grant application to the forum to request a
grant of £500 towards the cost of Donald Clarke Memorial Concert.
Decision: The forum agreed this allocation would come from wards funds.
SETRA presented a grant application to the forum to request a grant of £1465
towards the cost of the supply and installation of a heritage style information board
and lockable cabinet.
Decision: The Forum agreed to the spend from the Ward funds
Remaining Ward Fund Balance £4935

Page 13

COUNCILLOR UPDATES/NEWS
149
The following updates were provided.
Councillor Rana informed the forum of the following:
 Assistant Portfolio Holder for Finance, working on setting the budgets for 2021, savings needs to be made and there are increasing pressures
 A member of Friends of the Maternity Unit, busy campaigning for a
specialised midwifery unit at Rochdale Infirmary
 Lead for Climate Change, working on various schemes at GM level for
example solar parks, new build houses being equipped with electric car
charging points
 Encouraging healthy lifestyles; Identifying grot spots whilst out walking
 New planters at Spotland junction brighten the area up
 The resurfacing programme is now complete, the lining and relining is
underway
 Members fund has been used to purchase two new grit bins
Councillor Cocks informed the forum of the following:
 Assistant Portfolio Holder for Health and Well-being, the current priority is the
move of North Manchester General Hospital
 The GM Clean Air Plan also includes hospitals and their transport
 Chair of the Age Friendly Rochdale Steering Group, current focus is engaging
with the hard to reach groups and individuals
 Thanks were given to the Rochdale In Bloom group, the judges were
delighted when they visited. The Awards day is on 30 October
 Vice Chair of Rochdale Township North, currently working on the Township
Priorities, we hope to encourage more alleyways in bloom
 The OVO Energy Tour of Britain Cycle Race took place recently, the bikes
and blooms display at Cutgate shops were a great addition and very popular.
 St Edmonds Church are holding a public meeting on 10 October at 6.30pm to
discuss the future of the church
The Festival of Light will take place on 29 November in Falinge Park
Councillor Massey’s newsletter can be accessed via the link below.
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s68294/Councillor%20Massey%20%20Summer%20Newsletter%20Sept%202019.pdf
OPEN FORUM - AN OPPORTUNITY FOR LOCAL RESIDENTS TO COMMENT ON
ISSUES IN THE WARD
150
Residents raised the following issues:
1. Wildflower meadows look great, can they be extended on Ings Lane and the
recently cleared area at Spotland Bridge?

Page 14

Action - Seek advice from Environmental Management and report back
2. Public Rights of Way are in need of way markers, they are increasingly
popular and are included as part of the heritage trails.
Action – Seek advice from Julie Simpson ROW Officer
3. A resident reported that the footpath on Preston Street is overgrown and
considered to be dangerous, the land is privately owned. A discussion took
place that established that the status of the land needs to be clarified as either
a Public Right of Way or a preferred route, the Council’s responsibility will be
determined by the path status.
Action – Seek advice from Julie Simpson ROW Officer
4. A resident reported repeated fly-tipping at the rear of the hairdressers on
Edenfield Road
Action – Lee Wardle to inspect and report back to the forum
5. The litter bins on Rooley Moor Road near to the bus terminus are concrete,
litter easily escapes, can they be replaced with lidded bins?
Action – Request cost to replace the litter bins
6. A resident requested an update regarding the Greater Manchester Spatial
Framework (GMSF). The forum was advised that analysis of the consultation
responses is being undertaken, it is not likely to have a revised version before
next year.
Action – Add GMSF agenda item to a future forum and provide update when
available
7.

A lengthy discussion took place regarding the traffic regulation order (TRO)
proposed to introduce double yellow lines on junctions on Rooley Moor Road,
the following points were raised and discussed –
 Councillors were asked what evidence highways presented to them in
order for them to change their minds to agree to the TRO
 A resident commented that Highways didn’t present any statistical
evidence or accident data as evidence for the proposal because the
data doesn’t exist
 Councillors advised that they made changes to the first proposal to
reduce the amount of lines

Page 15

 The advice from Highways officers to Councillors was around
sightlines at junctions and the highway code
 Discussion took place regarding the attendance of Highways Officer at
the meeting, following a vote it was agreed to request an Officer
attends the meeting
Action: Invite Highways Officer to the next meeting
 A resident advised that the length of the lines was reduced from 15m
to 10m at the request of Cllr Massey
 The purpose of introducing the lines isn’t to reduce the speed vehicle
speed
 Safety is paramount, Councillors have received a number of
complaints from residents about the difficulties experienced when
exiting these streets. Councillors have acted upon this, and appreciate
it may not be a popular decision for everyone
 At the end of the consultation period the following process will apply
– if objections are received a report will be submitted to a future
committee meeting of the Township; the report will detail the
proposals, objections and highways responses. Residents can attend
the meeting, however, addressing the committee is at the discretion of
the Chair
 The consultation proposal is inadequate, it doesn’t provide residents
with enough information in order for them to make an informed
decision
 Enforcement of double yellow lines was discussed, resident are not
confident that the lines would be enforced
 The Statement of Reason from Highways says that they have received
no complaints from members of the public, a resident argued that if
members of the public/residents were involved in the preliminary
consultation it wouldn’t have led to a flawed TRO, in their opinion.
Councillors advised that complaints were raised to them by residents
and they in turn raised them to Highways
8. Funding has been approved to install an illuminated speed sign on Rooley
Moor Road, installing speed humps is prohibitive and doesn’t always solve
speed issues

Page 16

9. A resident suggested that the Area Forum have a dedicated website, a brief
discussion took place regarding lack of resources available, however this is
something that the forum wanted to pursue
Action - Establish the feasibility of an Area Forum website
DATES AND TIMES OF THE NEXT MEETINGS
151
Thursday 12 December 2019 – Spotland Methodist Church at 7pm (AGM)
Thursday 5 March 2020 – Spotland Methodist Church at 7pm

Page 17

Agenda Item 8
HEALEY AREA FORUM
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 17 October 2019
PRESENT: Councillors Heakin and O'Neill and approximately 30 members of the
public.
OFFICERS: I. Trickett, Greenspace Development and Countryside Manager, G.
Finch, Township & Engagement Officer, PC Harvard and PCSO Vohra.
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Wazir and 6 members of the public.
WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
236
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting and reminded Forum members of the need to
adhere to the Code of Conduct for the duration of the meeting.
The Forum was informed that the running order of the published agenda would be
slightly amended as follows:
-

item 2 – Greater Manchester Police including PACT meeting.

-

Item 3 – Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair

-

Item 4 – Common and Pond Working Group Update

-

Item 5 – Open Forum

Apologies had been received from six residents and Councillor Wazir.
GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE INCLUDING PACT MEETING (START AT
6.30PM)
237
PC Harvard and PCSO Vohra attended the meeting for this item.
The following incidents had been reported since the last Area Forum meeting:
Burglary 4 + 4 attempts
Theft from motor vehicle 6 + vehicle interference issues
Theft of motor vehicle 1
Criminal damage / Anti-social behaviour – Patrols have been undertaken at various
locations and times including the cattle grid area that was identified as a hot spot
area at the last meeting. Incidents identified from these visits is very low with little
evidence available to pursue prosectutions.
GMP Surgey’s are being held at Tesco Express on a monthly basis. This will be
advertised via social media links.
GMP are preparing to hold a community speed watch event in the Ward – residents
are welcome to attend. Anyone interested should contact PC Harvard on
17397@gmp.police.uk

Page 18

Residents raised the following issues:
-

A resident informed the Forum of the Shawclough and Healey Facebook page
that had been introduced to assist the community to become aware of
criminal activity in the area. GMP commented that they are aware of this
facility, however it was stressed that it is not a GMP site and any incidents
must be reported to the Police on 999 – 101 or the live chat facility.

-

It was commented that the 101 and live chat reporting facilities are poor and
significant improvements need to be made.

-

A resident described a serious assault on the moors and requested that GMP
has more of a presence in the area. It was explained that there are logistical
problems of attempting to police an area of this nature, the moors cover a
number of police jurisdictions, accessibility can be a problem and land
ownership can vary. However GMP will attempt to raise their profile in the
area where possible.

-

Residents are still experiencing problems with off-road bikes.

It was agreed the Forum priorities over the next three months will be – Burglary –
Moorland visits (beyond Pot House Lane) – Anti-social behaviour.
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR
238
Sheila Acton was appointed Chair.
John Kennedy was appointed Vice-Chair.
COMMON AND POND WORKING GROUP UPDATE
239
Ian Trickett, Environmental Management attended the meeting for this item.
The update provided to the Forum can be accessed via the link below:
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s68990/Syke%20Pond%20Cronkeysha
w%20Common%20Update.pdf
It was also explained to the Forum that a quote (£6420) had been received in
connection with the repair of the footpath that had recently been subject to a number
of thefts of flags from the area. It was agreed that £3000 could be used from Ward
Funds to support this initiative, £3000 would be sought from delegated approval via
Councillor O’Neill and Environmental Management would make a contribution of
£420.
The Forum was also informed that a camera had recently been installed at the Base
in an attempt to combat thefts in the area.
A resident also commented about the poor condition of the Coptrod Play Area.
In response to this it was explained that a detailed examination of all play areas will
be taking place going forward.

Page 19

OPEN FORUM - AN OPPORTUNITY FOR LOCAL RESIDENTS TO COMMENT ON
ISSUES IN THE WARD (START AT 7PM)
240
Residents raised the following issues:
1. A pot hole has appeared on Dell Road. It was commented that this is being
dealt with.
2. The steps at Waigap Rise / Stoneyheys require attention as they are
overgrown with weeds.
3. Trees are overhanging onto the footpath on Syke Road. It was commented
that the trees are on private land.
4. Hazelgrove Farm is now occupied.
5. A resident asked if the Public Space Protection Order is likely to be reviewed
as a result of the dispersal of beggars / homeless people from the Town
Centre into other areas.
It was commented that this dispersal has been managed and planned and
offers those in need of support access to services.
6. The Story of Christmas will take place at Syke Chapel on Thursday 19
December.
7. A resident asked if the thirteen trees that had not taken when planted would
be replaced. It was commented that Environmental Management had agreed
to do this.
8. A discussion took place about the availability of dog waste bags.
9. A discussion took place regarding the possibility of installing a notice board
onto the Common, close to Syke Base. The cost of this installation would be
sought.
10. A resident commented that a traffic survey was undertaken on Shawclough
Road recently.
UPDATES ON ISSUES RAISED AT PREVIOUS MEETINGS
241
Updates provided:
1. The steps at Waingap Rise are in a dangerous condition – No progress
2. Shawclough Road re-lining / re-surfacing – The work is planned for October.
3. Bentley Street Traffic Calming – Work completed.
MEMBERS/WARD FUNDS
242
The Forum was informed that at the commencement of the meeting the following
funds were available:
Ward Funds - £7344

Page 20

Councillor Heakin - £290
Councillor O’Neill - £1750
Councillor Wazir - £1750
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 AUGUST 2019
243
The minutes of the Area Forum meeting held on Thursday 22 August were approved
as a correct record.
MATTERS ARISING FROM THOSE MINUTES NOT LISTED AS AGENDA ITEMS
244
The Forum was informed of the following:
1. The following issues had been reported:
-

White goods which are for sale are still being stored on the pavement
outside a shop on Whitworth Road.

-

Signs advertising a coffee morning have been secured to a tree at Horse
Carrs. It is understood this has been resolved.

-

The trees at Hawley Green / bus shelter on Shawclough Road are
overgrown and require cutting back. It is understood this has been
partially completed. The bushes outside number 16 still require attention.

-

The triangular piece of land at the junction of Dell Road / Shawclough
Road requires cutting. It is understood this has been resolved.

2. Lighting columns 35 – 22 – 12 will be used to facilitate the speed survey on
Dewhirst Road.
3. Grit Bin – Pot House Lane / Dewhirst Road has been installed
4. The land at Ironwaters that had been identified for the placement of a litter bin
is not Council owned, therefore it cannot be used. As an alternative it was
suggested that a litter bin be placed on Council owned land nearer to Syke
Base.
5. No response had been received regarding the request from Highways to
undertake a speed survey on Whitworth Road.
6. Two new litter bins will be installed close to Shawclough Stores. The concrete
bins currently in place will be removed. Councillor Heakin has agreed to fund
this.
COUNCILLORS' NEWS
245
The following issues were raised:
1. 70% of Primary Schools have signed up to the ‘Dippy’ exhibition.

Page 21

2. South Parade is currently being transformed to match the area around the
river.
3. Drake Street is being targeted to increase residential accommodation in the
area.
4. Rochdale Town Hall has featured on a number of television programmes
recently – Peaky Blinders – World on Fire.
Peaky Blinders Tours and Ghost Tours are also available at the Town Hall.
5. A masterplan for the Station Gateway is nearing completion. This will be
looking to improve traffic management in the area, provide additional car
parking, improve station facilities and increase residential occupancy.
6. In response to a comment concerning the demise of the market it was
acknowledged that the Council’s plan for the area had not materialised as
expected. It was commented that a trader has now taken responsibility for the
initiative.
7. Because of damage being caused to flags on the Common, adjacent to Joy
Street the cost of introducing a timber knee rail would be sought.
8. In response to a question about drones, residents commented that they had
not seen any increase of use in the area. Additional information in respect of
the use of drones can be found on the Civil Aviation Authority web site.
9. Consideration is being given to the introduction of a power supply to the
triangular piece of land at the junction of Dell Road / Shawclough Road.
NEWS FROM PEOPLE IN THE AREA AND SYKE COMMUNITY BASE
246
The following issues were reported:
1. Syke Base has been successful in acquiring funding from two sources. The
financial support received will be used to employ staff to run additional
courses and seek additional funding opportunities.
2. A roast dinner will be served at the Base on Sunday 20 October at 12 noon. A
£4 donation will be requested.
3. An Autumn Fair will be held at the Base on Saturday 19 October – 11am till
1pm.
4. Rochdale Ramblers will be having a litter pick in the area on Saturday 16
November – 10am till 12 noon.
5. A Beever Group has recently started at the Base.
6. The Base received £300 from last year’s Mayor.
DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
247
6th February 2020, commencing 6.30pm at Syke Base.

Page 22

Agenda Item 9
CENTRAL ROCHDALE AREA FORUM
MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 11 November 2019
PRESENT: Councillors Ali Ahmed and Sultan Ali, B. Lloyd (Chair) and 15 members
of the public.
OFFICERS: PC Marvell, G. Finch (Township & Engagement Officer) and L. Wardle
(Enforcement Officer)
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
INTRODUCTIONS, APOLOGIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT
163
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and reminded members of the need to
adhere to the Code of Conduct for the duration of the meeting.
Apologies had been received from Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed.
PACT MEETING - GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
164
PC Marvell attended the meeting for this item.
The Forum was informed:
1. Since the issue of anti-social behaviour at the rear of Oswald Street and on
the Leisure Centre car park was raised several drivers have been spoken to,
had their details taken and warned about their behaviour. Section 59 notices
have been served to the regular offending vehicles. Since this action has
been taken, fewer reports from local residents have been received. However
should anti-social behaviour activity return to the area residents were
encouraged to contact 101 or the GMP live chat facility.
2. There have been increasing reports of anti-social behaviour and loitering
around the sheltered areas of Jack McCann Court. Discussions have taken
place with the manager of the establishment and local residents to
understand the problems being experienced and hotspot times of incidents.
Plans are currently being put together by the Neighbourhood Policing Team to
address this problem.
3. Operation Considerate was held on the 22 October which resulted in 1 male
being arrested for possession of an offensive weapon and two Section 165
seizures for no license.
4. A speed enforcement initiative was held on the 2 November – George Street
and Oswald Street were targeted.
5. Over recent months a number of uninsured and untaxed vehicles have been
seized. GMP have also worked with the DVLA who have clamped several
untaxed vehicles in the area.
6. Operation Treacle was actioned during the Halloween and Bonfire period.
Particular emphasis was focussed on the inappropriate use of fireworks and

Page 23

associated anti-social behaviour. GMP have worked alongside the Local
Authority’s Licensing Service to investigate this issue further.
7. Operation Dark Knights is currently ongoing, focussing upon the prevention of
burglaries. Residents were reminded to be vigilant and take adequate security
measures.
8. The theft of catalytic convertors from vehicles in the Ward is still happening.
The Honda Jazz and Toyota Prius are cars that are regularly targeted.
9. A facility now exists on the GMP website where residents can vote for the
issues that are affecting their area, for example speeding, drugs, anti-social
behaviour. To use this go to the GMP website, click on ‘my area’ and search
for the streets / roads within the area and vote. Residents can have up to
three votes per month.
10. GMP in liaison with a Ward Councillor are currently in the process of
organising a Community Homewatch Scheme in the Ward.
11. GMP are looking to strengthen closer working relationships with partner
agencies, for example Trading Standards, Bailiffs and the DVLA.
12. The next Police Surgery will be held in January at either the CommuniTea
Room or Jalalia Mosque. Once a date is known it will be circulated on social
media networks. Consideration is also being given to introducing a female
only surgery.
Forum members raised the following issues:
-

It was asked how the ‘Proceeds of Crime Fund’ can be accessed.

-

A discussion took place about speeding in the Ward, Greenbank Road,
Foxholes Road and Red Lane where identified as problematic areas. It was
commented that the named areas are 20mph traffic calmed areas, therefore
the Council cannot do anything else. Greater enforcement in these areas is
the way forward. It was commented that speed enforcement initiatives could
be undertaken on these roads in the future. It was also commented that the
Council has recently purchased two speed guns.

-

A discussion took place about the problems being experienced by residents
on Oswald Street and why it had taken so long to introduce measures to
combat anti-social behaviour in the area. It was explained that Highways
would not support restricting access or introducing bollards to the area. The
installation of CCTV is being considered, however this is taking longer than
expected to finalise.
It was agreed that a meeting between appropriate stakeholders be organised
as soon as possible.

Page 24

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING, MATTERS ARISING AND UPDATES
165
The minutes of the Area Forum meeting held on Monday 19 August 2019 were
approved as a correct record.
A resident asked what progress had been made with the request to introduce yellow
lines on a small section of Taylor Street to ease congestion in the area.
In response it was commented that Highways had been asked to evaluate the
request. No feedback had been received, however the Township and Engagement
Officer agreed to follow this enquiry up.
OPEN FORUM
166
Residents raised the following issues.
1. It was commented that a large number of bins are being left out after
collection. It was asked if the Council could do more to encourage residents to
collect and return their bins to their homes after collection. Brunswick Street
was identified as a problematic area.
It was commented that no offence is being committed. However to try and
improve the situation a leaflet drop would be organised and the Mosque
would be asked to encourage the community to be more proactive in returning
bins.
2. A lengthy discussion took place about untidiness in certain parts of the Ward.
Littering and fly tipping was seen by some present at the meeting as being a
significant problem in the area. It was also argued that more enforcement
should occur in relation to this issue.
In response it was highlighted that the Council has specific teams that deal
with issues of this nature, although resources and capacity are limited.
Enforcement does occur, however this is a labour intensive job which relies
upon evidence being available. Residents were encouraged to report
incidents of littering and fly tipping with as much detail and information as
possible. It was also suggested that groups of volunteers could be set up to
collect rubbish from the area and a change of mindset is required by some in
the Ward.
Following further discussion it was agreed that:
-

Data in relation to the number of fly tipping / littering prosecutions be
obtained.

-

Consideration is given to the introduction of a bye-law to support greater
enforcement of littering and fly tipping incidents.

3. It was reported that litter bins are being thrown into the river.
4. A resident asked if any progress had been made with the request to tidy the
land adjacent to Brunswick Street / West Street. This would be investigated.
5. The Forum was informed of the Wardleworth Community Awards which will
take place at Wardleworth Communty Centre on Tuesday 17 December 2019.

Page 25

6. Reports of anti-social behaviour at College Bank Flats was highlighted.
7. Bushes hanging into the footpath on a section of Rugby Road.
WARD NEWS
167
All Ward issues had been previously covered.
DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
168
3 February 2019, commencing 6.30pm at Wardleworth Community Centre.

Page 26

Agenda Item 10
Report to Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public Document

16 January 2020
Cabinet Member for
Environment
Paul Wotton

Objections to Traffic Order - Spotland Road, Rochdale
Executive Summary
1.1

Proposals to introduce some evening peak waiting and loading restrictions on
the south side of Spotland Road (A680) have been advertised and two
objections received.

1.2

This report explains the background to the proposal and comments upon the
points made by the objectors to assist the Committee in coming to a decision
about the proposed Order’s introduction.
Recommendation

2.1

The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions)
(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.169)
Order be
 implemented as advertised, or
 referred for Cabinet to determine should the Committee not feel fully
able to support the proposal in its entirety.

2.2

The proposed waiting and loading restrictions are to be introduced on
Spotland Road (A680) which forms part of the Borough’s Strategic Road
network.

2.3

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order relates to
a highway of strategic importance and is processed in accordance with the
Council’s constitution Part 3 Section 8.2.2 in that the Committee has
delegated power to confirm the proposals and the Order. However, if the
Committee wish not to confirm the proposals and the Order, the matter must
be referred to Cabinet for decision.

2.4

It is the recommendation of Highways Officers that the Order should be
introduced as advertised to address the issue of parked cars impeding
westbound traffic approaching the traffic signals situated at the junction of

Page 27

Spotland Road and Sheriff Street in the evening peak period.

Reason for Recommendation
3.1

Copy of Statement of Reasons

3.1.1 Officers have noted issues with parked vehicles on the south side of Spotland
Road between Holland Street and Julia Street. As part of a scheme to
improve the efficiency of key routes across the network, funding has been
received from TfGM to promote new restrictions in this location.
3.1.2 Spotland Road forms part of the A680 route between Rochdale and
Edenfield. It is an important strategic route linking Rochdale with Norden, and
beyond that East Lancashire. The route becomes congested at peak times
and is also a bus route. The section under investigation is located close to the
town centre just to the north of the A58, which forms part of the inner orbital
route.
3.1.3 Between the signal junction at Sheriff Street and the junction at Julia Street,
there are two traffic lanes marked out. The inside lane facilitates the ahead
movement in a westerly direction along the A680 and the outside lane
facilitates right turning movements into Sheriff Street and along the B6377.
The two lanes extend upstream to the junction of Julia Street. The lanes are
protected by existing 24 hour prohibition of waiting and peak time loading
restrictions, which extend to a point 15 metres east of Julia Street. There are
no parking restrictions in place from this point eastwards for a distance of 50
metres up to the bus stop lay-by near to Holland Street. This section of
highway is marked out with an un-restricted parking bay.
3.1.4 During evening peak times the major flow of traffic is outbound in a westerly
direction towards the signal junction at Sheriff Street. Signal timings are set
with priority given to the major flow in each direction along the A680. This
often results in a queue of right turning traffic extending to a point alongside
the parking bay. When this situation occurs and vehicles are parked within the
bay, ahead movements are obstructed. The resulting queue often extends
upstream to the signal junction at the A58 St Mary’s Gate. The obstruction
reduces the efficiency of each junction and creates unnecessary delays on
two of Rochdale’s key strategic routes.
3.1.5 It is therefore proposed to remove the parking bay and replace it with evening
peak time waiting and loading restrictions. The removal of the parking bay
markings will allow for the lane markings to be extended further upstream,
confirming the extended space for motorists queuing in the inside lane to
make the ahead movement.
3.1.6 The five year injury accident record shows three recorded collisions in the
vicinity of the proposed restrictions.
3.1.7 It is proposed to promote new evening peak time waiting and loading

Page 28

restrictions on the south-west side of Spotland Road from a point 15 metres
south-east of its junction with Julia Street for a distance of 50 metres in a
south easterly direction, as detailed on the accompanying plan. The operating
hours of the restrictions are No Waiting and No Loading Mon-Sat 3pm-6pm.
3.1.8 The proposed restrictions will reduce congestion on the network by easing the
obstruction issues caused by both right turning vehicles and parked vehicles,
allowing westbound ahead movements to flow un-restricted.
Key Points for Consideration
4.1

The section of Spotland Road (A680) under consideration is important to the
highway network because it carries heavy traffic flows to and from Rochdale
town centre well in excess of 20000 vehicles per day.

4.2

The proposal is intended to help evening peak flow traffic heading westbound
out of Rochdale towards both of Edenfield Road (A680) and Shawclough
Road (B6377).

4.3

The restrictions proposed cover the period Monday to Saturday from 3pm to
6pm when waiting and loading would be prohibited.

4.4

At other times including all of Sunday there would be no restrictions.

4.5

The proposal is the minimum feIt necessary to address the observed problem.

4.6

Appendix A is a plan showing the position of the restrictions which are
intended to occupy part of the south side of Spotland Road

4.7

Two objections were received to these proposals from Ward Members. See
Appendix C.

4.8

The Council in its role as Highway Authority has a duty of care to ensure the
safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic Management Act
2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

4.9

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only
right the general public has on a highway is a right of passage along it.

4.10 In respect of the junction of Spotland Road and Sheriff Street both objectors
comment that the traffic signal timings are in need of adjustment.
4.11 The traffic signals operate under a system called SCOOT which is
self-optimising by using sensors in the road surface to detect the numbers of
vehicles on all approaches to the junction and distributing the green times
based upon real-time traffic demands to balance delay across the road
network.
4.12 The SCOOT system has been recently checked and was found to be working
as expected.

Page 29

4.13 It is commonly observed in the evening peak that the inside lane heading out
of Rochdale which is already protected by No Waiting At Any Time restrictions
over a length of 88 metres is significantly under used because traffic cannot
reach it, being prevented by vehicles parked at the kerb side further back
along Spotland Road.
4.14 The restrictions proposed seek to make better use of the road space in the
evening peak by allowing straight ahead traffic a better chance of reaching the
signals.
4.15 At such times the capacity of the junction is not being used to its full potential,
resulting in longer queues than would otherwise occur, and contributing to
overall traffic delays.
4.17 At such a busy time any increase in capacity can make a significant difference
to queue length and delays.
4.18 Any improvement in capacity can be automatically shared by the SCOOT
system amongst all approaches to the junction.
4.19 Alternatives Considered
4.20 The restrictions proposed are intended to prevent vehicles parking when the
tidal flow out of Rochdale is at its greatest during the evening peak and are the
minimum believed necessary to improve approach capacity at the junction and
allow the network to operate more efficiently.
4.21 Widening Spotland Road to create an additional traffic lane is not a possibility
without the demolition of property and therefore far beyond the scope of this
proposal to introduce some restrictions for part of the day.
4.22 Appendix D contains the response to objections received.
Costs and Budget Summary
5.1

The estimated cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is £4000 funded
by Transport for Greater Manchester.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely
and efficiently for all traffic (including pedestrians) including maintaining the
expeditious movement of traffic.
Consultation

7.1

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure)
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

Page 30

7.2

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on
14th October 2019.

7.3

Notices of Intention were posted on site and published in the local
newspaper on 16th October 2019 – See Appendix B.

7.4

The objection period ran until 6th November 2019.

7.5

The restrictions chosen are not used anywhere else in the borough, having
been specifically chosen for use on the section of Spotland Road under
consideration. So that they might in future be used elsewhere in the
remaining Townships’ areas, each of the Heywood, Middleton, and Pennines
Traffic Regulation Orders have had amendment orders advertised and these
can be completed as a routine matter because no objections were received
to them.
Background Papers
none

For Further Information Contact:

Place of Inspection

Paul Wotton,
paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 31

APPENDIX A – Spotland Road (A680)
Scheme plan as advertised

Page 32

APPENDIX B – Notice of Intention
TRO Ref No H60/1320
BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)
(VARIOUS STREETS) (ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 169) ORDER
Spotland Road, Rochdale
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its
powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to
make an Order, the effect of which would be to amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil
Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order
2008 by inserting the following:Index to Schedules
2.29 – No Waiting Mon-Sat 3pm-6pm
5.29 – No Loading Mon-Sat 3pm-6pm
Schedule No 2.29
No Waiting Mon- Sat 3pm – 6pm
Schedule No 5.29
No Loading Mon- Sat, 3pm – 6pm
Spotland Road, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)
the south-west side from a point 15 metres south east of its junction with Julia
Street for a distance of 50 metres in a south easterly direction

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the length of road concerned, together
with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at The
Customer Services Centre, Ground Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale
OL16 1XU during normal office hours, or viewed on the Council’s website
www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads, or by phoning Highways on 0300 303 8879.
Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16
1XU to reach the Council on or before 6th November 2019, quoting H60/1320.
Dated this 16th day of October 2019

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)
Resources Directorate
Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 33

APPENDIX C – Objections Received
Objector 1

Councillor Rachel Massey
Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Subject: Objection to TRO H60/1320
I am writing to object to TRO with reference H60/1320, on the following grounds.
This TRO does not address a problem. It has not been reported by a councillor, a resident, a
business, a bus company, the police or other emergency service. Neither has it been
commissioned by Rochdale Township. The duly elected council members for Spotland & Falinge
have several other areas which are problematic that are not being addressed. Areas that have
been reported by residents, businesses and elected councillors. These areas do not seem to find
any funding from Highways or TfGM, but this TRO for an unreported problem has been funded by
money that the elected officials of this borough do not seem to have access.
As this TRO does not address a problem it is poorly considered.
Congestion builds on Spotland Road between Sheriff Street and Spotland Bridge, increasing the
number of vehicles stacked in the area of the proposed TRO by a maximum of 7 - 8 does not
alleviate this congestion. Congestion also builds on Sheriff Street, between Spotland Road and
Falinge Road, increasing the number of vehicles stacked in the area of the proposed TRO by a
maximum of 7 - 8 does nothing to alleviate this congestion.
The TRO solves nothing at all in terms of the real problem which is that traffic is not moving
upstream of the signal at Spotland Road and Sheriff Street.
The TRO does not solve the problem of the yellow box junction at St Mary's Gate and Spotland
Road being non-enforced.
The TRO does not solve the problem that a yellow box is required at the junction of Spotland
Road and Sheriff Street.
The TRO does not solve the problem that the mini-roundabouts at Spotland Bridge, and Falinge
Road are no longer fit for purpose in a managed traffic network that can deal with flows of peak
traffic.
The TRO is a cheap attempt to patch a wider problem, and as an elected member for Spotland &
Falinge I cannot support yet another no waiting restriction in this ward while there remains no
proposals or plans to upgrade the no longer fit for purpose junctions upstream in the network.
The TRO will at best allow 7- 8 additional vehicles to queue at the junction, this is not good
investment in terms of cost to attempt to alleviate the pressure on the network by 7 - 8 vehicles.
The TRO also assumes that the 7-8 vehicles are going straight on along Spotland Road. The TRO
will not help as vehicles going right would still restrict access to the left lane for straight on, this
will simply be moved 7 – 8 cars back towards St Mary’s gate.
The TRO will also not help the wider network as the additional 7 – 8 spaces would be quickly filled
by vehicles turning into Spotland Road from College Bank.

Page 34

The Statement of reasons notes that, 'The five year injury accident record shows three recorded
collisions in the vicinity of the proposed restrictions.' This is not a valid statement without more
detail. Will the cause of these incidents be addressed by the TRO? If not, why is the statement
relevant, and why is it included in the statement of reasons?
As accidents have been brought up, it must be added that should this TRO be made, traffic
emerging from Julia Street right onto Spotland Road is potentially more likely to be involved in an
accident, having to cross two lanes of traffic. What consideration has been made to assess this
risk in the proposed TRO?
The situation of traffic turning right from Julia St is also not considered by the TRO in terms of the
congestion this causes. Vehicles usually pull into the westbound traffic on Spotland Road to go
East preventing any progress up Spotland Road. The same occurs as vehicles emerge from
College Bank, causing the same problem. Again the TRO does nothing to address these bigger
congestion causing issues.
I join my fellow ward councillors in objecting to this proposed TRO.
Councillor Rachel Massey
Spotland & Falinge, Rochdale
Assistant portfolio holder for Children’s Services
Number 1 Riverside, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Objector 2

Councillor Faisal Rana
Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

TRO H60/1320 Spotland Road OBJECTIONS
Please see below my objection to propose TRO.

The proposed traffic order will not Help any traffic flow on Spotland road. I do not
believe it’s the parked cars on Spotland road. The problem is caused by the traffic
control signal at the junction of Sheriff street and Spotland road. This traffic signal
needs to be managed better and time to turn right on sheriff street need to be
increased which I believe will solve the issue. On the basis of reasons cited above
I strongly object to this TRO.

Kind Regards

Councillor Faisal Rana
Spotland & Falinge Ward
Assistant Cabinet Member For Finance

Page 35

APPENDIX D – Response to Objections
Both objectors are Spotland and Falinge Ward Members and members of Rochdale
North Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-Committee.
One objector states that this TRO does not address a problem.
Evening peak observations do demonstrate that the presence of parked vehicles on
a 50 metres long section of Spotland Road prevent two lanes of traffic forming on the
approach to the traffic signals at Sheriff Street junction. Access to an inside lane for
traffic heading along Spotland Road is impeded by traffic in an outer lane waiting to
turn right and by parked cars on Spotland Road.
Whilst there are evening peak delays on both Spotland Road and Sheriff Street this
proposed TRO is an opportunity to moderate queue length on the approach to
Sheriff Street signals and reduce the possibility of traffic being queued back into the
St Marys Gate (A58) junction and exceeding the length of the right turn lane on St
Mary’s Gate.
Traffic signal timings at the junction of Spotland Road and Sheriff Street have been
recently checked by Transport for Greater Manchester’s Urban Traffic Control Team
and found to be working as expected. The signal timings have been adjusted to
increase the throughput of right turners at the junction.
Removing the parked vehicles would allow for the full extent of the green time to be
utilised as straight ahead traffic would no longer be prevented from getting to the
junction. This improves the overall efficiency of the junction.
This TRO proposal is at a moderate cost funded by Transport for Greater
Manchester as part of the Mayor of Greater Manchester’s congestion deal funding.
More substantial construction projects to improve junction capacities further along
Spotland Road at major cost are far beyond the scope of a TRO proposal affecting
some 50 metres of road. By increasing the capacity of the westbound arm, it is likely
that the extra effective green time can be shared between all arms of the junction,
reducing delay on all approaches. When the junction is over capacity during the
evening peak, any small improvements in this capacity can lead to significant
reductions in delay.
Reference has been made to wider congestion issues in the Spotland area which are
contributing to delays. While improvements at junctions downstream of Spotland
Road and Sheriff Street may benefit traffic flows on the wider network, it would not
do anything to increase the throughput of vehicles at this junction. The alternative to
this proposal to increase throughput and reduce delays at this junction would require
major geometric changes, necessitating the acquisition of neighbouring land and
properties.
One objector has suggested that the delays on Spotland Road are caused by
queues extending back from the double mini-roundabouts at Spotland Bridge. It is

Page 36

the Highways Officers view that queues from this location rarely extend the full
length of Spotland Road under normal peak traffic conditions and seldom reach
Primrose Street.
The proposed TRO will not alter the single lane wide Spotland Road at its junction
with Holland Street where traffic from the College Bank area joins. For westbound
traffic Spotland Road remains a single lane width for 48 metres to a point after the
bus stop marking.
The proposed TRO will not alter the width of Spotland Road at its junction with Julia
Street. Existing no waiting at any time restrictions already create sufficient width to
allow formation of two lanes of westbound traffic approaching the signals at this
location.
The proposed scheme is a measured approach to the evening peak period traffic
flows out of Rochdale town centre in a westerly direction along Spotland Road by
introducing restrictions that would only apply in that period.
Mirroring this are some established restrictions heading towards Rochdale which
apply only in the morning peak direction of traffic flow.
An improvement to evening peak westbound queue length and traffic flow would also
result in a lessening of instances where right turning traffic from St Marys Gate (A58)
fills more than the full length of its dedicated lane and impedes through A58 traffic
heading in the direction of Castleton.

Page 37

Agenda Item 11
Report to Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

16th January 2020
Cabinet Member for
Environment
Andrew Cowell
Public

Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Rooley Moor Road Area,
Rochdale
Executive Summary
1.1

A request was received from local ward members for the Highways and
Engineering Service of the Council to investigate the introduction of parking
restrictions along Rooley Moor Road to address reported issues of
indiscriminate parking. An approved commissioning form was subsequently
received from Rochdale Township for the Council to survey the location and
devise a scheme promoting new restrictions where appropriate. A proposal
was drafted and then discussed in detail with ward members. The extent of
the restrictions were relaxed at the request of ward members prior to the
scheme being advertised.

1.2

A scheme detailing new parking restrictions was drafted and approved by
ward members. The restrictions were formally promoted and during the
consultation period the Council received 2 letters of support and 40 letters of
objection to the proposal, 32 of which were identical.

1.3

In general, the objectors report that the restrictions will increase vehicle
speeds, have a negligible effect on traffic flows and are not necessary due to
the number of reported accidents. The objectors therefore believe that the
proposal will unnecessarily affect the parking arrangements of local
residents. A resident has also contested the way in which the traffic order
was drafted and advertised.

1.4

The report outlines the reason for the proposal, the supporting comments,
objections received and a response to the objections.
Recommendation

2.

The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions)
(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.173)

Page 38

Order be implemented as advertised, be amended, or be abandoned in light
of the representations received, which are outlined in Appendix B of this
report. It is the recommendation of Officers that the objections be dismissed
and the proposal introduced as advertised.
Reason for Recommendation
3.

Copy of Statement of Reasons
A request was received from local ward members for the Highways and
Engineering Service of the Council to investigate the introduction of parking
restrictions along Rooley Moor Road to address reported issues of
indiscriminate parking. An approved commissioning form was subsequently
received from Rochdale Township for the Council to survey the location and
devise a scheme promoting new restrictions where appropriate. A proposal
was drafted and then discussed in detail with ward members prior to the
scheme being advertised.
Rooley Moor Road is an un-classified road extending from Edenfield Road to
Ings Lane. It is a local distributor road providing vehicular access to a
significant number of residential streets. Residential properties and several
shops and takeaways also front directly onto the road which generates onstreet parking activity. Parking is un-regulated along the majority of its length
except near the junctions of Edenfield Road, Ings Lane, Marlborough Street
and Balfour Road. The road also forms part of a bus route.
It is reported that parking occurs at various points along the route which causes
a number of issues:






obstruction to the free flow of traffic
reduction in forward visibility at various points along the route
reduced visibility at junctions
obstruction at bus stops
obstruction and damage to footways

Particular problem areas identified are around the bend to the north of Tenby
Street and in the vicinity of Churchill Street. The vertical and horizontal
alignment of the road at these locations combined with the on-street parking
activity reduces forward visibility, making these sections of the route awkward
to negotiate.
The proposal also includes the provision of new restrictions around each
junction along the route. This will increase visibility for motorists emerging from
each side road and maintain two-way traffic flow into and out of each side road,
thereby reducing the likelihood of shunt accidents along the main road.
Bus stop clearway restrictions will be promoted at each bus stop currently
unrestricted. This will enable buses to access each stop parallel to the kerb,
thereby enabling passengers to board and alight safely.

Page 39

It is proposed to introduce limited waiting restrictions on the east of the island
location north of Bentinck Street where there is a demand for short term
parking near to local shops. This will assist each business.
It should be noted that some properties which front on to the road have parking
facilities at the rear. Numerous side streets also provide an on-street parking
alternative to Rooley Moor Road. As Highway Authority, the Council’s duties
are in respect of road safety and maintaining traffic flows, both of which must
take precedence over the provision of on-street parking places.
Although not all sections of the route have been the subject of complaints, it is
important to maintain a consistent approach to the introduction of any
restrictions along it, firstly to ensure that any restrictions introduced do not
displace parking into other areas and secondly to achieve economies of scale
in relation to the cost of any future traffic orders. It should be borne in mind
that Rochdale Township provided funding in 2016 for new restrictions at
Marlborough Street following complaints over visibility at the junction. The
scheme has been devised with both these factors in mind.
The Police Injury Accident Database shows 3 recorded injury accidents along
Rooley Moor Road over the past 5 years.
It is proposed to promote new prohibition of waiting restrictions, limited waiting
restrictions and bus stop clearway restrictions on Rooley Moor Road and
adjacent streets, as detailed on the accompanying plan.
The proposed restrictions will make improvements to traffic flow and increase
forward visibility in the vicinity of the bend, increase visibility at junctions and
maintain two-way traffic flow into and out of each side street. The restrictions
will also enable buses to access the stops parallel to the kerb to enable
passengers to board and alight safely. The restrictions will also protect crossing
points at each junction.

3.2

To address the issues reported, it is necessary to introduce the proposed
Order as originally advertised (see Appendix A).
Key Points for Consideration

4.

During the consultation period the Authority received 2 supporting letters
and 40 objection letters, 32 of which were identical. Similar to a petition,
identical letters are considered less influential compared to an individual
written letter. This is due to the ease in which signatures can often be
attained, difficulties in verifying signatories, how influential or persuasive a
lead petitioner may be and how influenced an individual may be.

Page 40

4.1

To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England
and Wales) Regulations 1996 the Authority must consider all objections
submitted during the consultation period of 21 days before ‘Making’ a Traffic
Regulation Order.

4.2

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is
deemed non-strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with
Section 8.2-2 of the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee.
Committee has delegated power to confirm or abandon the proposals and
the Order.

4.3

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only
right the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it.
The Council, acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of care
to ensure the safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic
Management Act 2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

4.4

The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response
are attached at Appendix B of this report.
Alternatives Considered

4.5

The Committee could consider recommending that the proposal be
amended or abandoned. An amended proposal would require additional
funding to re-advertise the proposal.

4.6

Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions proposed then the
issues with parked vehicles, which were reported to Rochdale Township
Committee, will not be addressed.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order will be met by Rochdale
Township Fund. The estimated cost is £4500.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely
and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.
Consultation

7.

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure)
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

7.1

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on
19th August 2019.

7.2

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local

Page 41

newspaper on 21st August 2019.
7.3

The objection period ran until 11th September 2019.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

Page 42

Page 43

APPENDIX A – Notice of Intention and plans
BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)
(VARIOUS STREETS) (ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 173) ORDER
Rooley Moor Road Area, Rochdale
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its
powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to
make an Order, the effect of which would be to:(i)

Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions)
(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time
Rooley Moor Road, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(x)

the west side from its junction with Edenfield Road for a distance of 75 metres in
a northerly direction

n(xi)

the west side from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Preston Street to a
point 10 metres north of its junction with Preston Street

n(xii) the west side from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Edenfield Street to
a point 10 metres north of its junction with Edenfield Street
n(xiii) the west side from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Blenheim Street to
a point 10 metres north of its junction with Blenheim Street
n(xiv) the west side from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Woodstock Street
to a point 10 metres north of its junction with Woodstock Street
n(xv) the south-west side from a point 10 metres south-east of its junction with Tenby
Street for a distance of 62 metres in a north westerly direction
n(xvi) the south side from a point 48 metres east of its junction with Churchill Street to
a point 48 metres west of its junction with Churchill Street
n(xvii) the north side from its junction with Ings Lane to the southerly side of the island
located approximately 15 metres north of Tenby Street
n(xviii)the east side from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Bentinck Street to
a point 23 metres south of its junction with Beaufort Street
n(xix) the east side from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Patience Street to a
point 23 metres south of its junction with Patience Street
n(xx) the north-east side from a point 10 metres north-west of its junction with
Belgrave Street to a point 10 metres south-east of its junction with Belgrave
Street
n(xxi) the north-east side from a point 10 metres north-west of its junction with Blair

Page 44

Street to a point 10 metres south-east of its junction with Blair Street
Preston Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
a westerly direction

Blair Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
an easterly direction

Edenfield Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
a westerly direction
Belgrave Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
an easterly direction

Blenheim Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
a westerly direction

Patience Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
an easterly direction

Woodstock Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
a westerly direction

Beaufort Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
an easterly direction

Bentinck Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
an easterly direction

Tenby Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
a westerly direction

Churchill Street, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(ii)

both sides from its junction with Rooley Moor Road for a distance of 10 metres in
a southerly direction

Schedule No. 3.22
Waiting Limited Waiting Limited Mon-Fri 8am-6pm 30 Mins. No Return Within

Page 45

30 Mins
Rooley Moor Road, Spotland and Falinge Ward
n(i)

the east side of the island located approximately 32 metres north of its junction
with Bentinck Street from a point 36 metres north of its junction with Bentinck
Street for a distance of 10 metres in a north westerly direction

(ii)

Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 2.3
No Waiting Mon-Fri 8am–5pm
Rooley Moor Road, Spotland and Falinge Ward
(i)

the north side from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Brotherod Hall
Road for a distance of 24 metres in an easterly direction

In addition to the provisions contained in the Borough of Rochdale ((Civil
Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township)
Order 2008) (Amendment) (No. 173) Order, a 24 hour Bus Stop Clearway will
be created on:Rooley Moor Road, Spotland and Falinge Ward
the west side from its junction with Blenheim Street for a distance of 27 metres in
a northerly direction
the west side from a point 25 metres south of its junction with Tenby Street for a
distance of 19 metres in a southerly direction
the south side from a point 10 metres west of its junction with Churchill Street for
a distance of 14.5 metres in a westerly direction
the east side from a point 23 metres south of its junction with Patience Street for
a distance of 21 metres in a southerly direction
the east side from a point 10 metres north of its junction with Bentinck Street for
a distance of 12 metres in a northerly direction
the north side from a point 14 metres east of a point opposite the easterly kerbline of Churchill Street for a distance of 21 metres in a westerly direction
A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned,
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be
inspected at The Customer Services Centre, Ground Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith
Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU during normal office hours, or viewed on the Council’s
website www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads, or by phoning Highways on 0300 303 8879.
Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16
1XU to reach the Council on or before 11th September 2019, quoting H60/1289.

Page 46

Dated this 21st day of August 2019

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)
Resources Directorate
Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 47

APPENDIX B – Copy of supporting letters, objections and responses.
The response from the Director of Neighbourhoods is detailed under each of the main
points raised in the objections.
Supporting letter 1
(Please accept this as a formal support letter for the traffic scheme above.)
I wish to support all aspects of the traffic order above. The scheme addresses the problems
experienced by myself and others as frequent users of this road. We have discussed these
problems on several occasions. Travelling north from Spotland Bridge up Rooley Moor
Road, (on the west side) there are a few left leaning bends where cars are parked, blocking
the sight lines to on-coming traffic. This may not be a problem for drivers of tall vehicles with
an elevated seating position, but for most car users it is a dangerous situation. I have twice
cautiously moved out to overtake these lines of parked cars, only to be in a head on position
with a vehicle travelling south. I have also experienced blocked sight lines due these parked
cars, some of which are parked right on the junctions, when trying to turn right from side
streets.
I have no problem of sight lines on the opposite side of the road, going down towards
Spotland Bridge. They do cause some degree of obstruction in that vehicles have to wait
until northbound traffic has passed, but the bends on this east side are all right leaning, so
there are nor dangerous obstructions of sight lines.
The straight stretch of road on the east side going past the asian takeaway and the Fish and
Chip shop does not have any obstructions of sight lines, but there are often cars wholely
parked on the pavement in front of the houses, which have caused problems when I have
walked along this route. You have to either walk directly in front of someone's front door, or
step onto the road to pass.
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. If this goes to a Committee of
Councillors, please let me know the date, time and location of the meeting so I may attend.
Supporting letter 2
I totally agree and support the proposal below. I live on Rupert Street and get the bus from
Churchill Street into Town. The number of near misses I have seen or buses having to
reverse back to allow traffic to pass because they have misjudged the situation is madness.
Additionally due to my health issues, I find it dangerous to have to step onto the main road
because cars are wholly parked on the pavement. I see this behaviour frequently on
Churchill Street also, where I and young mothers with prams have to cross into the main
road because people have parked irresponsibly. Considering the closeness of Meanwood
School and children returning home with parents/guardians, this cannot be right or
acceptable.

Page 48

Objection 1 (Signed by 32 residents)

Highway’s Response to Objection 1
A recent vehicle speed survey carried out on Rooley Moor Road showed the average speed of
vehicles was around 26mph. There is no evidence to suggest that the introduction of waiting
restrictions cause people to speed. The removal of parked vehicles does not in itself promote
motorists travelling at excessive speed, but does increase forward visibility and remove the slow
down, give way, accelerate past obstructions in favour of the opportunity to make normal
unhindered progress. Speeding is one of the biggest concerns to the travelling public and residents,
only surpassed by complaints about indiscriminate parking. It is extremely difficult to judge speed
even for the trained eye so most complaints tend to be anecdotal in nature. Speeding is a matter for
the police as Rochdale BC does not have any enforcement powers. The surveys undertaken in 2017
suggest that there is not a particular problem with speeding on Rooley Moor Road but the Township
have recently approved funding for a vehicle activated sign.
Improving traffic flows along the route is only one of many benefits of the scheme. The main
purpose of the scheme is to improve visibility at junctions and bends along the route. The majority of
the scheme reflects the rules of the Highway Code.
Any displacement of parking into side roads is likely to be minimal. The junctions will become safer
to use as a result of the proposed restrictions.
There are residential properties on Rooley Moor Road so any environmental pollution will simply be
displaced and not eliminated.
The side roads are considered safer for on-street parking.

Page 49

Officers do not consider that the scheme will force motorists to travel past the school. The
restrictions will however improve sight lines at junctions thereby improving safety for children
walking to and from school.
Objection 2
I am writing to comment on the above proposals.
The proposals are intended to address visibility and obstruction, and whilst they may well
solve that, I believe they will cause a number of other issues, and there might be better ways
of tackling the impact of the indiscriminate parking along Rooley Moor Road.
Issues







Cars parking on Rooley Moor Road will have to park elsewhere – this will only serve
to move the problem of parking to a different road, not actually solve it
Parked cars currently mean drivers have to regulate their speed. By opening up the
highway there will be a significant increase in the amount of speeding traffic on
Rooley Moor Road (it is already an issue, and a speed display sign has been erected
for some time near the Turner Brothers site entrance)
The consultation doesn’t appear to identify the exact location, cause, or severity of
the incidents reported and this should be clarified as part of the decision making
process
I expect the proposed changes will increase the volume and speed of traffic on this
section of Rooley Moor Road, which will exacerbate the already fairly serious issues
at the two roundabouts at the bottom - with Edenfield Road and Mellor Street. The
impact on those roundabouts needs factoring into and considering as part of these
proposals before a decision is made

I believe a better way to make the road safer would be to make part of this section of Rooley
Moor Road one way. In doing so I believe consideration will have to be given to football
traffic and coaches.
Alternative solutions should be considered as part of the process before a decision is
reached.
I look forward to hearing feedback on my comments.
Highway’s Response to Objection 2
The side roads are considered safer for on-street parking.
See previous speed related comments in Objection 1.
The incidents reported relate to general indiscriminate parking at several locations along the route
and the proposal aims to be consistent by treating each junction.
Rooley Moor Road provides an alternative route to Edenfield Road. Both roads lead to the same
junction and will therefore result in no change to the volumes of traffic passing through this junction
A one-way traffic order would increase speeds and pose an inconvenience to all the residents in the
area and those that use Rooley Moor Rd. It will increase traffic on Ings Lane / Edenfield Rd. It would
affect several bus routes and may reduce services.
There are no alternative solutions to address the issues reported.

Page 50

Objection 3
I am writing to comment on the above proposals, to which I object.
The proposals were intended to address visibility and obstruction, and whilst they may well
solve that, I believe they will cause a number of other issues, and I believe there are better
ways of tackling the impact of the indiscriminate parking along Rooley Moor Road.
Issues
- Cars parking on Rooley Moor Road will have to park elsewhere – this will only serve
to move the problem to a different road, not actually solve it
- Parked cars currently mean that drivers have to regulate their speed. By opening up
the highway I am certain there will be a significant increase in the amount of
speeding traffic on Rooley Moor Road (it is already an issue, and a speed display
sign has been erected for some time near the Turner Brothers site entrance)
- The consultation doesn’t appear to identify the exact location, cause, or severity of
the incidents reported. If they were caused by driver error, speeding etc, this
proposal will not solve repeat incidents. This should be clarified as part of the
decision making process
- I expect these changes will increase the volume and speed of traffic on this section of
Rooley Moor Road, which will exacerbate the already fairly serious issues at the two
roundabouts at the bottom - with Edenfield Road and Mellor Street. The impact on
those roundabouts needs factoring into and considering as part of these proposals
before a decision is made
I believe a better way to make the road safer would be to make this section of Rooley Moor
Road one way – North to South only. Northbound traffic could travel via Edenfield Road and
Ings Lane. This would also make the Spotlands roundabouts safer, wouldn’t impact resident
parking, and would mitigate some of the potential speeding issues created by clearing the
road.
Alternative solutions should be considered as part of the process before a decision is
reached.
I look forward to hearing feedback on my comments.
Highway’s Response to Objection 3
See responses given above to Objection 2.
Objection 4
I write relating to the above proposed traffic restrictions. I have lived at 34 Rooley Moor Road
since 2001 and during this time, both ours and are neighbours vehicles have been damaged
on several occasions. Often the culpable drivers do not stop and therefore significant costs
are incurred in reparations to vehicles.
Whilst I completely understand the statement of reason, I do not believe that suitable
alternatives exist on side roads as stated in your proposals. I note that you do not propose to
place double yellow lines outside our property, but as you intend to put double yellow lines at
the junction of Preston street and Rooley moor road, we will have little alternative but to park
on the main road, risking damage from the drivers of cars who have little or no regard for
speed limits at most times of the day.

Page 51

I wonder whether a one way system has been considered…the triangle of Edenfield Road,
Sandy Lane, Rooley Moor Road, would seem to present a perfect opportunity for such a
scheme and would allow on road parking with sufficient room for traffic flow?
Further, I wonder whether any further realistic alternative care parking arrangements could
be considered (especially on Rochdale FC match days), when parking for local residents is
challenging at best, and nearly impossible at worst. Perhaps some form of speed restriction
is also needed to protect the resulting on street parking...
Whilst, I do understand the need for safety and reduction of indiscriminate parking - much
more thought is needed in order to develop a sustainable parking solution.
Highway’s Response to Objection 4
Any damage to vehicles is likely due to the width of the carriageway being restricted due to parked
vehicles. This scheme will ease this issue.
The overall on-street parking capacity on side roads is adequate to cater for any displacement from
Rooley Moor Road as a result of the proposed restrictions. Therefore, there should be no
requirement for residents to use Rooley Moor Road.
See previous response on the introduction of a one-way traffic order in Objection 2.
Match-day parking is an issue un-related to this proposal.
Whilst the objectors agrees that there is an issue which needs to be addressed, the Council is not
responsible for the provision of on-street parking for residents.

Page 52

Objection 5

Highway’s Response to Objection 5
As a consequence of the increase in traffic using the road, more motorists are parking in unsuitable
locations.
See previous speed related comments in Objection 1.
The Council is not responsible for the provision of on-street parking for residents. The restrictions

Page 53

allow for loading/unloading.
The restrictions will improve sight lines at junctions thereby improving safety for children walking to
and from school.

Objection 6

Page 54

Page 55

Page 56

Highway’s Response to Objection 6
The Council is responsible for the safety of road users. The proposal is a solution to address the
issues reported. The Council cannot control the behaviour of residents.
Objection 7

Highway’s Response to Objection 7
See previous speed and traffic flow related comments in Objection 1.
Higher traffic speeds are recorded on all roads. The national average is 6% of vehicles travelling over
40mph within a 30mph limit.
As with all traffic orders we promote, the Council followed The Local Authorities Traffic Orders
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 in advertising the proposal, which involved
publishing a notice of intent in the local newspaper and posting copies of the same notice on site.
The proposals were also available to view on the Council’s website.
The Council do not generally consult with persons whom it believes may be affected by a proposal as
there may be supporters of the scheme whom would not be afforded the same opportunity to make
representations. Supporters of a scheme may be regular users of the highway and not necessarily
local residents or businesses. Further to this, it is not always clear which properties may be affected
or not, which can lead to further claims of inconsistency in the way in which the Council advertises a
new traffic order.

Page 57

Objection 8
I object to this plan unless it is accompanied by a 20mph speed restriction along its full
length.
The traffic now holds up the speed of the idiots driving on it.
Highway’s Response to Objection 8
This is not the purpose of the scheme.
Objection 9
Due to the length of this objection, it has been broken up into sections with a
Highway’s response following each section.
Please accept this submission as an objection to the proposed Trafﬁc Regulation
OrderTRO H60/1289
The issues highlighted in this objection could have been avoided, if the whole process had
not been conducted in such a covert manner, which kept people in the dark until Highways
was statutorily compelled to notify people.
Although Rochdale Council has the authority to bring about TROs, that authority is subject
to TROs being made in accordance with the correct application of the relevant law. Any
local proceedings should also be conducted in a fair, transparent and balanced manner.
Response
As with all traffic orders we promote, the Council followed The Local Authorities Traffic Orders
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 in advertising the proposal, which involved
publishing a notice of intent in the local newspaper and posting copies of the same notice on site.
The proposals were also available to view on the Council’s website.
The Council do not generally consult with persons whom it believes may be affected by a proposal as
there may be supporters of the scheme whom would not be afforded the same opportunity to make
representations. Supporters of a scheme may be regular users of the highway and not necessarily
local residents or businesses. Further to this, it is not always clear which properties may be affected
or not, which can lead to further claims of inconsistency in the way in which the Council advertises a
new traffic order.
This current proposal originates from Highways accepting, without question, an elected
councillor’s (Cilr X) request for a road traffic survey — without them having to provide any
veriﬁable evidence to support such a request. The only pre-condition of conducting the
survey was whether the costs of £4500 could be obtained via the committee of which the
requesting councillor was a member.
Once funding was secured, it set In motion an unfair and biased procedure, which then
looked for reasons to justify the £4500 expenditure. A sort of seIf-fulfilling funding
prophecy.

Page 58

Response
The scheme originates from complaints over indiscriminate parking and the Committee, not an
individual ward member, approved funding for the scheme. Funding approved by Committee made
up of a number of Councilors and therefore not one person’s decision and is in accordance with the
Council’s Constitution.
The issue of speeding (50—60mph+) at the lower end of Rooley Moor Road was not a
matter considered despite the fact that this was repeatedly brought to the attention of ward
councillors over a number of years.
Response
This is a separate issue to the proposed TRO. However, a recent vehicle speed survey carried out on
Rooley Moor Road showed the average speed of vehicles was around 26mph. It is not unusual for
recorded speeds to be much higher than this on a road of this character. There is no evidence to
suggest that vehicle speeds would be higher at other locations along Rooley Moor Road or compared
to other roads in the Borough
Context:
The proposal for the TRO in question has to be considered within the evidential
context of ofﬁcial statistics and ﬂawed local procedures, which the Statement of
Reason has ignored.
This objection is primarily concerned with the proposals to introduce waiting
restrictions at all the junctions along Rooley Moor Road.
Response
The decision to promote restrictions in this case is not accident data led. The commission directed
officers to look at the route both to be proactive and to achieve economies of scale. Rochdale
Township recently funded a new TRO in isolation at Marlborough Street. This was as a result of
complaints made to the Council. To avoid the potential additional costs to treat other junctions
along the route in the same way in future, then it is sensible and pragmatic to look at each junction
along the route to avoid further costs.
Relevant facts:


Over the last seventeen years, there have been approximately 3 - 4 MILLION vehicle
movements along the relevant stretch of Rooley Moor Road (source: Casualty
Reduction
Team Rochdale Council May 2017)


During this time, there has been only two recorded accidents involving a vehicle
exiting or entering a side junction . One was at Beaufort Street and one at Bentinck
Street. (source: Greater ManchesterTranspartation Unit GMaxi system)



Over the same period, there have been no recorded accidents involving vehicles
entering or leaving any of the following side junctions:

Blair Street, Preston Street, Edenﬁeld Street, Beigrave Street, Marlborough Street,
Patience Street or Tenby Street. (source: Greater ManchesterTransportatlon
UnitGMaxi system)


There are no recorded accidents involving pedestrians crossing at any of the above
side road junctions. (source: Greater ManchesterTra nsportation Unit GMaxi system)

Page 59



The latest available average speed on a section of Rooley Moor Road that lies within
the proposed scheme, was found to be 26mph in either direction. (source: Casualty
Reduction Team Rochdale Council May 2017)

Response
The scheme was not accident data led.
The time taken for the expeditious movement of trafﬁc along the 900 yards from
one end of the proposed TRO to the other end at average speed is:
26mph - 1m 11: How can anyone claim that this is not already an adequate, safe
and expeditious movement of trafﬁc within a 30mph zone.
Response
Improving traffic flows along the route is only one of many benefits of the scheme. The main
purpose of the scheme is to improve visibility at junctions and bends along the route. The majority of
the scheme reflects the rules of the Highway Code.
Objection to the TRO on the grounds of bias and unfairness
1) The flawed manner in which Rochdale Highways has concluded the preliminary
stage of the TRO has created procedural bias and is therefore unfair.
A request for a TRO can be made by any individual whether they are a councillor or
not. A councillor, when requesting a TRO has no more of a statutory standing or a
right to be involved in the preliminary consultation than any other non-statutory
individual or organisation.
Any non-statutory organisation or individual that is part of any preliminary
consultation is permitted at the discretion of Highways. it is therefore incumbent
upon them to ensure that this does not introduce procedural bias.
In exercising its discretion, Rochdale Highways speciﬁcally allowed the person who
initiated the TRO process to be involved in preliminary consultations. At the same
time, residents who would be directly affected by any TRO were deliberately
excluded.
Response
It would not be appropriate for the preliminary consultation and the design of the scheme to have
involved local residents. Where a TRO is promoted which may affect the parking arrangements of
local residents, generally the residents could not be relied upon to provide an unbiased impartial
view. Further to this, the supporters of the scheme would then not be afforded the same
opportunity to be involved, hence why TROs are advertised in the way that they are. This process
ensures parity to both supporters and objectors as neither party is treated differently and are
afforded the same opportunity to make representations during the consultation process.
It allowed councillors to act beyond the terms of reference relating to their subcommittee role, which ultimately has the responsible for conﬁrming, adjusting or
abandoning a TRO.
The timeline of events and occurrences detailed below illustrates this:
I) 10.01.2018 -. A commissioning form was completed by Highways with the purpose of
obtaining £4500 of funding, to enable it to investigate whether parking restrictions should

Page 60

be introduced along a section of Rooley Moor Road.

This commissioning form was completed solely on the basis of a councillor (Cllr X) claiming
that they had received complaints about indiscriminate parking on Rooley Moor Road. No
objective evidence was produced in support of this claim.
ll) 13.03.2018 - At a meeting of Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated
Sub Committee, the funding request of £4500 was approved, despite no verifiable evidence
being adduced. At the time, Cllr X was both a member and chair of this committee. The
councillor declared a personal interest and so did not vote. However, they did not step
down from chairing the meeting while the funding request was considered and passed .
The commissioning form stated: ”Following consultation with word members, a scheme
would be drafted to promote any restrlctlons proposed”. In other words, once wa rd
councillors (including Cllr X) agreed it was acceptable, the proposed TRO would then be
publicised to the general public.
Response
All three ward current members were involved in discussions on the scheme.
Residents, having been excluded from any constructive input, would not be consulted but
would only be able to register objections. As their councillor 'representatives' would have
already agreed to the proposed TRO, residents who had genuine objections would then be
in the ridiculous, no win position of having to ask their councillors to oppose something that
those same councillors had already agreed was acceptable.
Response
See previous comments.
Ill) 21.3.2018 - Highways were unable provide an answer to the following question:
" ...can you advise what knowledge you expect ward members to have and how would you
have expected them to have acquired it, for them to be in a position to have any useful input
into the consultation that will take place” (FOI request via email)
Response
Officers with knowledge of TROs discussed the scheme with ward members, who are the publics
elected representatives.
IV) 26.03.2018 - I contacted Cllr X and asked why they had not, at any time, discussed this
matter with any local residents who would be affected by any potential TRO .
Response
See previous comments.
I also asked for the speciﬁc locations giving rise to the complaints that justiﬁed £4500 being
spent on a survey without any evidence. (via email)
V) 09.04.2018 — Cllr X responded by stating that their actions were part of their elected
mandate as a councillor and that they would not be giving me any details. They also
incorrectly claimed it would be contrary to data protection laws to reveal the locations of
the areas of concern. They did not appear to be aware of the fact that councillors have no
statutory standing in any preliminary TRO matters. (via email)

Page 61

Response
It is not usual for a scheme design to be placed in the public domain prior to advertising. This would
in effect result in the proposal being advertised twice, contrary to the legal process.
VI) 28.6.2018 - in response to a further enquiry, Highways informed me that residents
were not being consulted during the preliminary phase because, ” ...there is only one
solution to indiscriminate parking and that is to introduce waiting restrictions therefore
there is no need for Informal consultation... ”. (F0! request vIa email}
Response
The usual way to treat issues of indiscriminate parking is with waiting restrictions. As described
previously, it would not be sensible to undertake a consultation with local residents, some of whom
may be directly affected by a scheme.
I had provided them with examples of when residents had been informally consulted by
Highways. l was told that this occurred because unlike the Rooley Moor Road scheme, the
TROs (TC/07/16 & TC/04/15) involved physical calming.
However, on further research, it was quite clear that I had been deliberately misled.
Response
This is incorrect (See comments below)
TRO H60/1162 —- Is a TRO that concerns itself exclusively with waiting restrictions. An
assistant engineer actually attended the Norden Area Forum in December 2017 to discuss
proposals before the statutory legal process had even commenced.
Response
The TRO reference relates to a scheme in Littleborough not Norden. An officer did attend a forum in
Norden but this was an exception and was to discuss a range of issues and not specifically a TRO. No
proposed TROs were altered as a result of this meeting.
TRO H60/1307 — is another TRO that concerns itself exclusively with waiting restrictions.
The Highways report to the relevant sub-committee dated 10th July 2019 states:
’A scheme detailing new parking restrictions was drafted and advertised in May 2019, this
was following discussions on the scheme at several public forum meetings held in 2018... '
Response
The public forum meetings were for residents to discuss a range of highway issues in the area. A TRO
was not specifically discussed at these meetings. In fact the TRO referred to along Milkstone Road
was formed as a result of these meetings, to address concerns raised at that meeting.
VII)19.09.2018 On request, Highways provided me with information about complaints it
had received within the area to be surveyed. Of the four (4) complaints, two were logged
onto the system and two were unrecorded 'verbal’ complaints and so were not on the
system. None were speciﬁcally related to parking at side street junctions or concerned about
reported accidents. They were made between August 2016 and November 2017.
(source: FOI 17897)
Response
Where a proposed TRO includes restrictions on the main road to maintain a level of visibility at a
junction, it is usual to extend the restrictions into the side street as well. The Police generally do not
support restrictions which terminate at the side road.

Page 62

It needs noting that nothing appeared on the system regarding excessive speeding along
Rooley Moor Road, despite this having being raised through councillors and brought to
Highways attention on previous occasions.
Response
The Council and Rochdale Township were aware of reports of speed concerns. As a result of this, two
speed surveys were carried out in 2017. The results of reported an average speed of around 25.5
MPH. This is around a 2mph reduction compared to surveys carried out in 2008.
VIII) 4.11.2018 - in an email to the Highways Dept, Cllr X claimed that the reason a
resident was asking for the dates of the proposed survey, was ..."so that they could move
their vehicles temporarily, then put them back after the survey is completed”. Not only
was this a wild, unsubstantiated insult designed to undermine the integrity of concerned
residents but it also demonstrated the deep bias, lack of judgment and personal prejudice
of Cllr X.
Response
This is not the view of the Council.
At this point it should have been obvious to Highways that this councillor was not a suitable
person to be involved in any preliminary consultations of the TRO that they personally
initiated - especially as Highways had deliberately excluded sensible and reasonable
residents with genuine concerns.
Objections concerning the Statement of Reason
1. It is clear from the content of the legally required Statement of Reason that
Highways has misdirected itself in the application of Section 122 of the 1984 Traffic
Regulation Act. This Act is the authority by which TROs can exist. At para 8 of the
Council’s Statement of Reason:
’As a Highway Authority; the Council‘s duties are in respect of road safety and maintaining
trafﬁc flows, both of which must take precedence over the provision of on-street parking
places.’
However what 5.122 of the Act actually states in relation to parking is that
when making TROs:
(1) It shall be the duty of every local authority upon whom
functions are conferred by or under this Act, so to exercise the
functions conferred on them by this Act as (so far as practicable
having regard to the matters specified in subsection (2) below) to
secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of
vehicular and other trafﬁc (including pedestrians) and the
provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway or, in Scotland,
the road.
The above does not place an absolute requirement to provide parking but requires
Highways to take all its duties into consideration. It does not give any precedence to
trafﬁc flow. It requires a balanced approach which Highways have clearly failed to do
by misdirecting itself to give precedence to one aspect of its duties.
The selective wording used by Highways is also clearly designed to influence any
committee when it considers the Statement of Reason.
Response

Page 63

The wording within Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act has been misinterpreted by the
objector. The provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway is
mentioned in relation to parking bays and car parks and not unregulated on street parking areas.
Further to this, to maintain unregulated parking areas around junctions and near to other hazards
would certainly not be considered ‘suitable’. An unregulated section of highway is not a ‘parking
facility’. The majority of the restrictions in this proposal allows the enforcement of rules stated in the
Highway Code.
It is long established judicial opinion that a balanced approach has to be taken between
factors falling into (1) and (2) within section 122.
(See amongst others, Trail Riders Fellowship [2013] EWHC 3144 (Admin) at para 27)
”Thus the duty imposed by section 122 of the 1984 Act is a qualified duty. Against the duty
to secure the expeditious. convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other trafﬁc
(including pedestrians) is to be balanced the factors in section 122(2), such as the effect on
the amenities of the area and, in the context of making a trafﬁc regulation order, the
purposes for this identiﬁed in section 1(1). As a matter of law the duty of securing the
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicle and other traffic (including
pedestrians) is not given a primacy”
Response
Again this has been misinterpreted by the objector. The availability of parking outside a private
household is not considered to be an amenity.
The objector has failed to quote the whole of Subsection (2). For example Subsection (2) (c) directs
the local authority when making a TRO to, so far as is practicable, having regard to ‘the importance
of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of securing the safety and convenience of
persons using or desiring to use such vehicles’. It should be borne in mind that the proposed scheme
includes the provision of bus stop clearways and restrictions to help maintain unobstructed access to
the bus stops and along the bus route itself. The scheme also proposes the introduction of a Limited
Waiting Bay which will benefit the businesses in the vicinity of the Royds Arms.
In using the phrase ’must take precedence’, Rochdale Highways have demonstrably
failed in their duty to balance all relevant factors before reaching a conclusion.
Response
The Council has balanced all relevant factors as explained above.
The Statement of Reason contradicts itself when it states at para 9 ”...ensure that
any restrictions introduced do not displace parking into other areas... "
But at para 8 it indicates exactly where it expects displaced cars will go..."Numerous
side streets also provide an on-street parking alternative to Rooley Moor Road.”
Response
Any displacement is expected to be minimal. Displacement onto side roads is not expected to result
in a complete obstruction of the carriageway for emergency service vehicles. Any displacement will
be on to minor roads and away from the main hazards and major traffic flows.
No consideration has been given to the knock-on effect of trafﬁc ﬂow, road safety
concerning vehicles/pedestrians (particularly children), environmental effects,
existing parking, amenities on the side roads and access and egress for emergency
services.

Page 64

Response
The problems mentioned in this sentence are some of the concerns the scheme actually aims to
address.
The claim at para 12 that trafﬁc ﬂow will be improved is unsubstantiated and
unwarranted.
The average speed is a very respectable 86% of the 30mph speed limit. It is not a
congested route suffering from chronic, crawling trafﬁc jams. To try and justify a TRO
for reasons of increasing an already healthy free flowing trafﬁc rate, is an abuse of
process.
Response
It should be noted that the objector has stated that the average vehicle speeds are respectable but
at the same time also made complaints about vehicle speeds.
The amount of time that could possibly be saved while staying legal would be a
matter of seconds over the whole length of the proposed TRO. There is no evidence
that any of the proposals will even make this tiny difference.
Response
The original scheme included more extensive restrictions to aid the flow of traffic along the route.
The influence of traffic flows is only one of a number of benefits the scheme would achieve.
Any suggestion that there is a need to have 10 metre ’no waiting’ restrictions at
junctions to improve visibility and to reduce the likelihood of shunting is nonsense.
At streets which have terraced houses, all cars must be almost at the give way
junction to view oncoming trafﬁc. Any further back and all a driver can see is the
gable end of a house.
Response
This has been misunderstood by the objector and misquoted. The Statement of Reason does not
state that the reason for the side road restrictions are to improve visibility. The restrictions at each
junction along the main road are to improve visibility. The restrictions at each junction on the side
road itself are to improve the flow of two-way traffic. This reduces the likelihood of shunt accidents
on the main road. This is proven type of situation which can result in an accident where a motorists
is prevented from entering the side road due to a vehicle being stationary alongside a parked car at
the give way line, or approaching the give way line.
As ofﬁcial records show, there have been approximately 3-4 million vehicle
movements over 17 years, with one accident involving a car emerging from a
junction. There is no indication whether or not the junction was a factor or whether
it was simply driver error. Given that there has been one such accident in 17 years, it
is reasonable to assume it was driver error.
Response
As described above, vehicles parked on a side road near to the junction of a main road are a proven
hazard. It is not reasonable to assume that an accident was driver error purely by looking at the
number and frequency of accidents at a particular location. The restrictions also improve the intervisibility at junctions for both pedestrians and vehicles at junctions reducing the potential for
collisions.
One approach to justifying parking restrictions at junctions appears to be by
reference to the Highway Code. This section of the Code is not enforceable in law ~
like many other elements of the code. A person is not committing a criminal offence

Page 65

by simply parking within 10 metres of a junction. A TRO is not a mechanism to
enforce non-criminal aspects of the Highway Code. That is why virtually all junctions
within the Borough do not and will not be subject to such parking restrictions
despite most of the roads having the same 30 mph speed limits.
Response
Rule 243 of the Highway Code is not enforced as with a TRO. It states that motorists DO NOT park
within 10 metres of a junction. There are proven benefits from keeping a junction clear of parked
vehicles which the objector has failed to acknowledge. Although failure to comply with the other
rules of the Code will not, in itself, cause a person to be prosecuted, The Highway Code may be used
in evidence in any court proceedings under the Traffic Acts to establish liability. This includes rules
which use advisory wording such as ‘should/should not’ or ‘do/do not’.
It is not true to say that not all junctions are treated with restrictions because this rule within the
Highway Code is unenforceable. Restrictions are usually introduced at junctions as a result of
complaints. Not all junctions are the subject of complaints and so this is the reason not all junctions
are restricted.
It is also not difﬁcult to find double yellow lines at junctions within the ward which are 5
metres or less. The shortest one I personally found was about one yard at the
junction to a main arterial road.
Response
There may be cases where restrictions have been introduced at a shorter length. This could be due
to a number of factors such as the street being subject to a one-way traffic order for example, where
the issue of visibility does not exist at the entry point. Another reason could be a relaxation of the
scheme at the objection stage, where the relevant township committee may have taken a decision
to reduce the length following objections. Any restrictions that are one yard in length are not likely
to be restrictions relating to the side road. Where a restriction along a main road intersects with a
side road junction, it is usual practice to extend the line around the radius to the back of the
highway. In most cases this is to a point in line with the back of the footway, hence the resultant
short length of restriction.
If there is a demonstrable, objective safety issue then that would be a different
matter. That has not been shown to be the case.
The claim that visibility needs to be improved at junctions while at the same time
attempting to increase trafﬁc speed on the main road, is contradictory and shows
that the potential effects of proposals have not been properly considered.
Response
The Council has not attempted to increase vehicle speeds on the main road and neither has it stated
this in any documents, internal or external. This is purely the view of the objector. A decision on
whether or not to introduce restrictions to treat an identified issue would not be influenced by
speeding concerns. There is no evidence to suggest that the introduction of waiting restrictions
cause people to speed. The removal of parked vehicles does not in itself promote motorists
travelling at excessive speed, but does increase forward visibility and remove the slow down, give
way, accelerate past obstructions in favour of the opportunity to make normal unhindered progress.
Speeding is one of the biggest concerns to the travelling public and residents, only surpassed by
complaints about indiscriminate parking. It is extremely difficult to judge speed even for the trained
eye so most complaints tend to be anecdotal in nature. The results of the survey have already been
referred to previously.
Speeding is a matter for the police as Rochdale BC does not have any enforcement powers. to The

Page 66

surveys undertaken in 2017 suggest that there is not a particular problem with speeding on Rooley
Moor Road but the Township have recently approved funding for a vehicle activated sign.
Conclusion
Notwithstanding all the previous points, Rochdale Highways has:
1) Failed to demonstrate with any degree of certainty that the proposals will
maintain the expeditious and safe ﬂow of vehicles over and above what already
exists.
2) Failed to demonstrate with any reasonable degree of certainty that waiting
restrictions at junctions will reduce the likelihood of the non-existence problem
of shunting at junctions.
3) Failed to avail itself of all pertinent information relating to the proper
consideration of safety issues as did not undertake a speed survey on the fasted section of
Rooley Moor Road, despite funding for one being made available.
4) Failed to utilise all information that was available so as to reach reasonably
certain conclusions.
5) Failed to ensure that the statutory process was conducted in a fair and equitable
manner, free from bias.
6) Failed to consider the safety aspect of what an increase in speed would have on
safety at junctions.
7) Failed to balance the elements of 5.122 of the Road Traffic Act as required.
8) Failed to provide or request a reasonable level of evidence that would support
the aims of Statement of Reason.
For all the reasons above the proposed TRO is flawed and should be rejected.
Response
Each of the 8 points above have been answered within the main part of the objection.

Page 67

Page 68

Agenda Item 12
Agenda Item
Report to Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

16 January 2020
Neighbourhoods,
Community & Culture
Sharron Worrall
Public Document

Rochdale North Township Funds 2019/20
1.
1.1

2.

Executive Summary
Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments
and balances of Rochdale North Township Funds 2019/20 and enable the
allocation of funds to proposed projects.
Recommendation

2.1

Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale
North Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2

Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in
Appendix 3.

2.3

Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to
proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4

Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility
for the Rochdale North Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5

The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice
Chair and opposition spokesperson of the committee, to be given delegated
authority to make decisions on any deferred projects.

3.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

Management of the Rochdale North Township Fund is delegated to the
Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2

Rochdale North Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 69

3.3

To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale North
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of
Rochdale North Township Funds 2019/20 in Appendix 1 and 2.
Actual/committed spend for revenue funds is 69.62% and capital funds is
26.31%.

4.2

Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale North
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee to ensure that
Members are aware of the projects that have been agreed within their Ward.
Members are asked to note the decisions made under the delegated
arrangements since the last committee meeting in Appendix 3.

4.3

Projects have been identified for funding from Rochdale North Township
Funds 2019/20. Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or
defer the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects
listed in Appendix 4.

4.4

To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2019/20, Members
are asked to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation
with the Chair, Vice Chair and opposition spokesperson of the committee.

4.5

Alternatives Considered
In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

Rochdale North Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2018/19 in
Appendix 1 and 2.

5.2

Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use
of the Rochdale North Township Fund to ensure best use of available
resources.

5.3

Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring
reports will be presented to future committees.

6.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be
identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

6.2

The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

Page 70

6.3

The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those
priorities.

6.4

Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the Council
has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of any
changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to provide
them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with them
and any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding.
Therefore, if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a
service provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their
obligations under the Compact.

7.

Consultation

7.1

Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee
receives regular monitoring reports about the use of the funds. Any proposal
for funding requires support from at least one Member. All proposals will to be
consulted on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

N/A

For Further Information Contact:

Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 71

APPENDIX 1

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2019/20

£

Budget b/f 2018/19
Base Budget 2019/20
Income/Adjustments 2019/20
Total budget for 2019/20
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2019/20

58,596
80,823
139,419
67,359
29,706
97,065
42,354

Forecast Outturn
Potential over/underspend

139,419
-

Page 72

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE

Funds

Members Fund
Ward Fund
Projects Fund
Township Allocated Funds (pre 2019/20)
Total

REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE

Budget
b/f 2018/19
£
18,878
39,718
58,596

17,284

% Actual
Spend
48.31%

Base
Budget
2019/20
£
24,000
32,000
24,823
80,823

Income/
Adjustments
2019/20
£
-

Revised
Budget
2019/20
£
24,000
32,000
43,701
39,718
139,419

% Actual +
Committed
69.62%

Committed
£
2,112
7,646
19,947
29,706

Actuals
£
6,331
1,767
21,205
11,301
40,604

Virement
within
Virement
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
4,774
10,299
5,212
6,470
26,755

Total
£
13,218
19,712
26,417
37,718
97,065

Budget
remaining
2019/20
£
10,782
12,288
17,284
2,000
42,354

APPENDIX 2

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2019/20

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL

79,170
79,170
20,833
20,833
58,337

Forecast Outturn
Potential over/underspend

79,170
-

Page 73

Budget b/f 2018/19
Base Budget 2019/20
Income/Adjustments 2019/20
Total budget for 2019/20
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2019/20

Funds

Capital Fund
Total

CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

% Actual
Spend
26.31%

£

Budget
b/f 2018/19
£
-

58,337

Base
Budget
2019/20
£
79,170
79,170

Income/
Adjustments
2019/20
£
-

Revised
Budget
2019/20
£
79,170
79,170

% Actual +
Committed
26.31%

Committed
£
-

Actuals
£
10,245
10,245

Virement
within Virement
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
10,588
10,588

Total
£
20,833
20,833

Budget
remaining
2019/20
£
58,337
58,337

APPENDIX 3

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION
Members note the delegated decisions made by the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson
of Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Sub Committee
Ref No.

Name of Project

Ward

W/22/19 & Pot House
M/16/19
Lane/Dewhirst Road
Junction Grit Bin

Supply and installation of a grit bin at Pot House Lane/Dewhirst
Road junction, Rochdale as these roads becomes hazardous
during wintry conditions.

Healey

W/27/19

Donald Clarke
Memorial Concert

Northern Baroque Orchestra plan on staging a baroque concert in Spotland &
memory of Donald Clarke on 13 October 2019 at St Edmund’s
Falinge
Church in Falinge, Rochdale. Donald was involved with the
orchestra for more than 30 years, as a player, chairman, soloist
and keen promotor and when he became too unwell to lead he
was invited to become the first Honorary President. The concert
will be an opportunity to celebrate all that Donald did for classical
and baroque music and its listeners throughout his life. Orchestra
participants will learn new techniques and work with a top quality
conductor and soloists whilst the audience will experience live,
well performed classical and baroque music.

M/21/19

Taylor Park and
Edenfield Road
Daffodils

W/30/19

Birtle Church Wood
Access Improvement

Community planting scheme in Taylor Park along the roadside
Norden
frontage and Edenfield Road, Norden in the vicinity of Norden
Marker stone. Friends of Taylor Park and the local community will
be involved in planting daffodil bulbs to create a significant
recurring spring floral display to enhance these locations.
The Birtle Trust propose to improve the access into Bircle Church Norden
Wood with the construction of a path using timber and stone.
Inclement weather causes the current clay soil path to be
impassable and a hazard to the local community who use it to
walk through this historical woodland and enjoy the flora and
wildlife.

Page 74

Project Description

Page 1 of 6

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£1,006.46 23 September 2019 Awarded £750 from
Members Fund and
£256.46 from Ward
Fund
£500 30 September 2019 Awarded £500 from
Ward Fund

Amount

£250 16 October 2019

£766.80 17 October 2019

Awarded £250 from
Members Fund

Awarded £766.80
from Ward Fund

Name of Project

W/29/19

Stoney Hill Community Spotland Estate Tenants and Residents Association (SETRA)
Spotland &
Wildlife Area
have converted waste land on Stoney Hill into a community wildlife Falinge
Information Board
area with a meadow of wildflower and rare plants such as Dark
Mullein that has attracted 16 species of butterfly, including the
Brown Argus that has never been recorded in Rochdale, 11
species of bees and hundreds of other insect species. These
insert species have attracted animals higher up the food chain.
Stoney Hill Community Wildlife Area received a Grade 3 award
when it entered Rochdale in Bloom for the first time in 2018. It is
planned to organise events/activities such as butterfly walks, bee
walks and wildlife surveys with residents, in particular children,
from the area in the future. A heritage style information board at
the Bridgefold Road entrance will raise awareness of the
events/activities within the area and the bio-diversity of this green
space and how it is important to protect and enhance it.

M/20/19

Spotland Library Play
Area Equipment

M/22/19

Caldershaw Green
Access Gate

Page 75

Ref No.

Project Description

Ward

Spotland Library propose to acquire play equipment and storage Norden
facilities to enhance the service provision to local children and
families. The types of equipment selected will encourage children
to participate in imaginative and creative play that will improve
hand and eye co-ordination, problem solving skills, develop
imaginations, encourage freedom of expression, social interaction
between different cultures and backgrounds, channel their
energies in a constructive way and build confidence. Play
sessions will attract customers into Spotland Library, provide an
opportunity to increase library membership and participation in
other activities.
Supply and installation of a kissing gate at the access to
Norden
Caldershaw Green, Rochdale to replace the existing dilapidated
wooden gate and adjoining wooden post and rail fencing.
Environmental Management have agreed to match fund the cost
of this scheme.

Page 2 of 6

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£1,465 18 October 2019
Awarded £1,465
from Ward Fund

Amount

£613.52 18 October 2019

Awarded £613.52
from Members
Fund

£797.50 25 October 2019

Awarded £797.50
from Members
Fund

Name of Project

Project Description

RP/11/19

Skills4Sport

‘Skills4Sport’ programme offers free access to quality training and Rochdale
work experience leading to paid work in the Sports and Leisure
Township
Sector. Participants enhance their employment prospects with the
opportunity to gain knowledge and skills in this specialist sector
with access to Community Sports Leaders Level 2 Coaching
course, Emergency First Aid course, Safeguarding Children and
Vulnerable Adults Certificate, Coaching Disabled Performers
Certificate and pathways into additional training such as
Swimming Pool Lifeguards and Swim Teachers. Volunteering and
work experience will enable participants to secure good
competence based skills and showcase their talents and abilities
to potential employers. The programme for the duration of 8
weeks (one day or evening a week) has a target participant
audience of 20 students starting at 14 years of age and upwards.
Skills4Sport identifies those most at risk of remaining in
economically inactive situations and support them into a work
environment and employment whilst encouraging a healthy
lifestyle and volunteering to benefit the local community.

Page 76

Ref No.

M/31/19

W/34/19

M/36/19

Ward

Caldershaw
Greenway/Meadow
View Road Wildflower
Meadow

Creation of a wildflower meadow at the entrance to Caldershaw
greenway at Meadow View, Rochdale to provide a colourful
attractive floral display and a nectar rich environment for bees,
butterflies and other pollinating insects. A local environmental
group called Bee Inspired will undertake the sowing of the
wildflowers and the Council’s Rangers and Green Volunteers will
carry out the annual maintenance of the meadow. The wildflower
meadow will increase the biodiversity in the area and enhance the
Bee Inspired group’s entry into the North West in Bloom’s ‘It’s
Your Neighbourhood’ category.
Caldershaw Road
A review of the existing traffic calming measures on Caldershaw
Traffic Calming
Road, Rochdale to be undertaken and an Engineer from Rochdale
Investigation
Council’s Highways Section to prepare a report detailing their
findings and options to reduce the speed of vehicles using
Caldershaw Road.
Edenfield Road Shops Supply and installation of a grit bin on Edenfield Road, Norden in
Grit Bin
the vicinity of the shops as the footpaths become hazardous
during wintry conditions.

Page 3 of 6

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£3,000 28 October 2019
Awarded £3,000
from Projects Fund

Amount

Spotland &
Falinge

£440 29 October 2019

Awarded £440 from
Members Fund

Norden

£500 01 November 2019

Awarded £500 from
Ward Fund

Norden

£1,006.46 01 November 2019

Awarded £1,006.46
from Members
Fund

Name of Project

Project Description

M/37/19

Over Town Lane Salt
Bin

Supply and installation of a salt bin on Over Town Lane, Rochdale Norden
as this road becomes hazardous during wintry conditions.

M/17/19

Shawclough Road
Litter Bins

Supply and installation of two metal closed top bins on
Healey
Shawclough Road, Rochdale outside Shawclough News shop and
Nisa Local to reduce the problem of litter in the area. Existing old
concrete bins will be removed from outside 34 Shawclough Road
(fish and chip shop) and from outside Shawclough News shop.

M/23/19

Norden Library Coffee Norden Library propose to establish a coffee morning group that Norden
Mornings
will provide the local community with the opportunity to socialise in
a welcoming environment and address the issues of loneliness
and isolation to improve health and wellbeing. Resources
acquired to deliver the coffee mornings will also enable Norden
Library staff to offer access to hot drinks facilities during other
activities/events held in the library.

W/31/19

Rooley Moor Road
Litter Bins

M/30/19

Bamford Bolts Netball Bamford Bolts Netball Club provides opportunities for local girls
Norden
Club equipment
from the Bamford and Norden area to participate in recreational
and competitive weekly netball. This team sport gives players a
good cardiovascular workout and improves their overall fitness
and health. Players train twice a week for one hour and each
team (Bamford Blacks, Bamford Reds and Bamford Golds teams)
plays a competitive match every Sunday. Training equipment and
match balls will enable the players to enhance their skills in the
sport and continue to progress in competitive netball.

Page 77

Ref No.

Ward

Supply and installation of two new Derby closed top litter bins at
the top of Rooley Moor Road, Rochdale on a flagged surface to
replace the existing open top litter bins to resolve the issue of
sheep and wildlife removing the content of the bins and littering
the area. Environmental Management support the installation of
the new litter bins in this area and they have agreed to meet the
future revenue costs of emptying the bins on a regular basis.

Page 4 of 6

Spotland &
Falinge

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£1,006.46 01 November 2019 Awarded £1,006.46
from Members
Fund
£950 01 November 2019 Awarded £500 from
Members Fund

Amount

£106.37 04 November 2019

Awarded £106.37
from Members
Fund

£1,060 08 November 2019

Awarded £1,060
from Members
Fund

£500 19 November 2019

Awarded £500 from
Members Fund

Ref No.

Name of Project

M/35/19

Community at
Christmas 2019

W/26/19

M/48/19

Page 78

RP/13/19

Project Description

Ward

Syke Community Base propose to host a community event to
coincide with the switch on of the Christmas lights outside the
centre. The event will be an opportunity for the local community to
come together to celebrate the festive period as it can be often a
lonely time for many people, especially the older generation.
Activities of crafts, face painting, raffle, tombola and a Santa’s
grotto will provide entertainment for all ages and the community
base will offer refreshments.
Syke Common
Reinstatement of the footpath at the top end of Syke Common
Footpath
involving the repair and replacement of 60 linear metres of York
Reinstatement
paving with the slabs relayed in cement to deter further thefts and
create a safe walkway for the local community.
Christmas Community Meet & Eat Group facilitated at Spotland Methodist Church
Meet and Eat
propose to offer a Christmas meal to members from the local
community as the festive period can often be a lonely time for
many people, especially the older generation. Local school
children and a toddler group have been invited to sing carols to
create a welcoming and friendly environment that will provide an
opportunity for members to have mutually enjoyable and beneficial
conversations.
Rochdale AFC
Rochdale AFC Community Sports Trust wants to reach out to exVeterans Support
members of the Armed Forces community and veterans and bring
Group
them to the club to better understand their views and promote
integration within the wider community. A community
cohesion/consultation event will provide an opportunity for local
Armed Forces members and veterans alongside members of the
local BAME community at Rochdale AFC to meet the community
team and existing participants of the Trust’s projects to discuss
what the club and Trust can do to help improve their physical and
mental health. The Trust propose to host the event and provide
the opportunity for participants to watch a home match at
Rochdale AFC and enjoy a meal at the stadium. (Cost of this
project is split pro rata between Rochdale North Township and
Rochdale South Township as Rochdale Township wide project)

Page 5 of 6

Healey

Healey

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£350 22 November 2019 Awarded £350 from
Members Fund

Amount

£3,000 29 November 2019

Awarded £3,000
from Ward Fund

Spotland &
Falinge

£200 28 November 2019

Awarded £200 from
Members Fund

Rochdale
Township

£435 02 December 2019

Awarded £435 from
Projects Fund

Ref No.

Name of Project

Project Description

Ward

M/14/19

English to Bangla
Teaching

Greater Noakhali Association propose to organise English to
Bangla classes for local children aged 8 to 16 years old every
Sunday from 11.30am to 12.30pm from January 2020 for 40
weeks at Wardleworth Community Centre. A tutor will deliver
sessions to enable participants’ to speak, read and write Bengali
and give them the confidence to communicate effectively whilst
educating them in Bengali literature, culture and history.

Central
Rochdale

M/45/19

Sheriff Street Salt Bin Relocate a salt bin from after the junction of Sheriff
Relocation
Street/Knowsley Street to a position further up Sheriff Street,
Rochdale.
Falinge Road Footway Improvements to a footway at the junction of Falinge Road and
Improvement
Clarkes Lane, Rochdale involving re-profiling and edging to
address drainage problems and prevent standing water. Falinge
Park High School students have contacted the Council to express
their concerns about the condition of this footway as regular
flooding and mud make this popular route to Falinge Park High
School difficult to use.

W/52/19

Page 79

RP/25/19

Syke Common
Footpath
Reinstatement

M/34/19

Falinge Fold Salt Bin

Central
Rochdale
Spotland &
Falinge

Reinstatement of the footpath at the top end of Syke Common
Healey
involving the repair and replacement of 60 linear metres of York
paving with the slabs relayed in cement to deter further thefts and
create a safe walkway for the local community.
Supply and installation of a salt bin on Falinge Fold adjacent to the Healey
street name plate on Falinge Road, Rochdale as this road
becomes hazardous during wintry conditions.

Page 6 of 6

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£1,200 05 December 2019 Awarded £1,200
from Members
Fund

Amount

£50 05 December 2019

Awarded £50 from
Members Fund

£800 05 December 2019

Awarded £800 from
Ward Fund

£3,000 06 December 2019

Awarded £3,000
from Projects Fund

£1,006.46 07 December 2019

Awarded £1,006.46
from Members
Fund

APPENDIX 4
ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2019/20
Projects Fund 2019/20 available for allocation = £17,284

Rochdale North Township Projects Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met
Spotland Community
Yes
Association
People

Ref

Name of Project

Ward

RP/14/19

Going Digital

Spotland &
Falinge

Project Description

Spotland Community Association propose to organise classes (2 hours per week for six months) at Spotland Community Centre that will provide an
opportunity for the local community to enhance/gain skills in the use of online services, social media and digital technology. Classes will promote the use of
online services to manage bank accounts, pay bills, pursue further education and locate employment opportunities. (Application form at Appendix 4A)

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/21/19

None

Page 80

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/22/19
Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

£1,800

Rochdale Hornets
Rochdale
Yes
£1,962.50
Sporting Foundation
Township
People
Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation is the charitable arm of Rochdale Hornets Rugby Club and they propose to deliver the Rochdale TRY programme
that will provide young people with the opportunity to participate in a series of high quality rugby league afterschool coaching sessions for 27 weeks (extra
curricular) in Rochdale schools. Using the inspiration of the Rugby League World Cup (RLWC2021) that will be taking place in 2021 across the country
between 23 October and 27 November 2021 and in the same year Rochdale Hornets Rugby League Club will be 150 years, Rochdale Hornets Sporting
Foundation want to ‘get more young people involved and playing rugby league more often’, raise the sport in the borough and encourage local schools to
sign up to the resources and promote the RLWC2021 Education Resources as part of their school’s work through the TRY programme. It is proposed to
establish a brand new Junior Hornet 150 Club that will see 150 young people from across the four Townships attend every Hornets home fixture and
become lifelong supporters of rugby league and Rochdale Hornets and players of the future. The TRY programme will aim to support young people into
rugby league and an active lifestyle and increase the awareness and profile of the RLWC2021 in 2020 to build the momentum for the event in the borough.
(Application form at Appendix 4B - NB costs split between Rochdale North Township and Rochdale South Township. Rochdale North Township breakdown
of costs £1,350 coaching provision, £400 school assemblies, £118.75 marketing and £93.75 certificates and medals)

Rochdale TRY

None
Nigeria Community
Rochdale
Yes
£1,305
Association
Township
People
Nigeria Community Association plan on organsing an African inspired music concert in 2020 that will increase opportunities to engage with the local
community to create an appreciation for diversity and raise awareness of their aims to promote cultural identity. A Drumming/Cultural Group Workshop
over a six month period (twenty five sessions) will provide participants the opportunity to learn West African drumming techniques from an experienced
tutor and engage in discussions about different aspects of African culture through demonstrations of traditional dances, costumes, storytelling, crafts and
games. (Application form at Appendix 4C - NB cost split pro rata between Rochdale North Township and Rochdale South Township as Rochdale Township
wide project)
None

Drumming/Cultural Group Workshop

Page 1 of 4

Rochdale North Township Projects Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

RP/23/19

Rochdale
Yes
Nigeria Community
£959.61
Township
People
Association
Multicultural Parade on 10 May 2019 in Broadfield Park will feature beautiful dancers, marching bands and magnificent floats to celebrate diversity and
promote love and peace through music. Local community groups, charities, faith groups and uniformed groups will be given the opportunity to showcase
their cultural differences and promote understanding and mutual respect. The public will be entertained with performance from an ensemble of musicians,
a talent show, mini Olympics, face painting and stalls offering a variety of food and refreshments. (Application form at Appendix 4D - NB cost split pro rata
between Rochdale North Township and Rochdale South Township as Rochdale Township wide project)
None

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/26/19

Project Description

Page 81

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Ward

Multicultural Parade 2020

Rochdale
Yes
Oulder Hill
£700
North
People
Community School
Township
Place
Oulder Hill Community School have affiliated with the Royal British Legion when Year 10 students participated in the Institute of Education’s battlefield
programme and they created a national award-winning legacy project on remembrance that commemorated the fallen soldiers of Rochdale. Students plan
on continuing this project with the creation of a memory garden that will provide a place to remember key events in history and an area for students and
staff who have experienced a bereavement or trauma in their own lives to reflect and remember them. Oulder Hill Remembrance Garden will be
maintained by students who will cultivate herbs, plants and fruit and it will provide evidence for those students seeking a qualification in BTEC Land based
studies. Also Duke of Edinburgh students have agreed to keep the area clean, tidy and sustainable. (Application form at Appendix 4E)

Oulder Hill Remembrance Garden

None

Norden Ward Fund/Members Fund available for allocation = £10,000

Rochdale North Township Projects Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

Ward

W/35/19

Norden Village CCTV

Norden

Project Description

Provision of a monitored CCTV system on Edenfield Road, Norden (vicinity of Norden News and Co-op shop) to deter anti-social behaviour/criminal activity
within Norden Village and provide a safer environment for the local community. The Council’s Street Lighting Section to arrange the replacement of column
107 on Edenfield Road with a 10 metre heavy duty column with socket outlet to accommodate the CCTV camera and existing bus stop and mandatory
parking signage. The future maintenance of the system will be covered by CCTV maintenance contract facilitated by Rochdale Council’s Community
Safety Section. Rochdale North Township Fund's terms and conditions require any proposals over £3,000 to be referred to the next Rochdale North
Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub Committee for decision. Norden Ward Councillors have agreed to fund this proposed project with a
combination of Norden Ward and Members Funds including decommitted funds for projects from previous years that have not been realised. (Project brief
at Appendix 4F)
Estimate is based on similar CCTV systems procured by Rochdale Council’s Community Safety Section.

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Page 2 of 4

Yes
Place

Ward Councillors

£10,000

Capital Fund 2019/20 available for allocation = £58,337

Rochdale North Township Capital Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

TC/02/19

Spotland & Yes
Councillor Rana
£9,935.04
Falinge
Place
Supply and installation of a six metre galvanised street lighting column with 28 watt LED lantern on Eden Street, Rochdale with Electricity North West
electrical service connection and chamber/ducting across the carriageway and ducting in the footway to enhance the lighting in the area and improve public
safety. (Project brief at Appendix 4G) Scheme deferred at Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee on 4 July
2019 and 26 September 2019 and a representative from the Council's Street Lighting Team be requested to attend the committee to respond to
Members' questions.

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
TC/21/19

Page 82

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
TC/22/19
Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
TC/25/19
Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Ward

Eden Street Lighting

Estimated cost may change if the Electricity North West electrical service connection cannot be made at the proposed column locations or the street
lighting columns cannot be installed in the locations detailed once the work commences on site due to unforeseen circumstances.
Spotland & Yes
Councillor Rana
£1,006.46
Falinge
Place
Supply and installation of a salt bin on Clement Royds Street, Rochdale as this road becomes hazardous during wintry conditions. The salt bin will be
placed at an optimum location to enable treatment of the road at critical points whilst ensuring it does not impede pedestrian flow. (Project brief at Appendix
4H)
None

Clement Royds Street Salt Bin

Spotland & Yes
Councillor Rana
£1,006.46
Falinge
Place
Supply and installation of a salt bin at Rooley Moor Road/Fern Hill Lane junction, Rochdale as this location becomes hazardous during wintry conditions.
The salt bin will be placed at an optimum location to enable treatment of the road at critical points whilst ensuring it does not impede pedestrian flow.
(Project brief at Appendix 4I)
None

Rooley Moor Road/Fern Hill Lane Junction Salt Bin

Norden

Yes
Ward Councillors
Option 1: £6,875
Place
Option 2: £8,730
Supply and installation of 1.8m high deer fencing along the edge of Ashworth Road carriageway south of the Scout Camp for Option 1 - a distance of 50m
(the lengh of the new wall at the original landslide) or Option 2 - a distance of 90m (length of th new wall including an additional 40m fencing on the northern
side of the wall). Fencing will deter fly tipping in this area. (Project brief at Appendix 4J)

Ashworth Road Deer Fencing

Estimated cost assumes any statutory undertakers apparatus will not be affected by the proposed works.

Page 3 of 4

Rochdale North Township Capital Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

TC/28/19

Option 1: £10,500
Option 2: £11,000
Option 3: £31,000
Introduction of traffic calming measures along Heights Lane to create a 20mph school safety zone to provide safer access to Brownhill Community School
and reduce vehicle speeds. (Project brief and plans at Appendix 4K)

Project Description
Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Ward
Healey

Heights Lane 20mph School Zone

Yes
Place

Ward Councillors

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development
resulting in additional costs. Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward
Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content. The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any
objections received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended. Also the estimate
assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Page 83
Page 4 of 4

APPENDIX 4A

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2019/20
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/14/19

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

“GOING DIGITAL”

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Spotland Community Association

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides

Spotland Community Association (SCA) is a registered charity which works with disadvantaged &
deprived communities of Rochdale - providing support, advice & guidance around welfare rights/
benefits, education & training and social inclusion activities to improve the overall quality of life. The
charity started back in 1996 and has continued ever since. We work with all age groups and
minority groups delivering projects and services throughout the area. Our focus is to bring
communities together and breakdown cultural barriers.
The groups we work with have increased over the years now covering refugees/asylum seekers,
lone parents, people who have married into the UK and have come over as a spouse, young
offenders, ex-substance users, BME community and domestic violence victims. We have always
tried to create an open-door policy for all and have always focused on eliminating multiple barriers
and help individuals cope with high levels of deprivation and unemployment in the area. Accessing
mainstream services is a huge problem for some of our service users often leading to further
problems and hardships. Our focus remains to help with targeted, 1-2-1 support for all.

d) Contact name

Asghar Ali

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode

92-96 Spotland Road, Rochdale, OL12 6PJ

g) Email address
h) Web address

www.spotlandcommunitycentre.co.uk

Page 84
Form RT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
M/25/18 Get fit sessions – Awarded £320
M/21/18 Walking for health – Awarded £320
£6,000 – boiler refurbishment grant / electrical trips – August 2015
W/31/15 Spotland Community Centre Security – Awarded £1210.00
W/27/15 Benefits & Welfare Advice Service – Awarded £4992.00
M/37/15 Social Media Online Project – Awarded £3264.00
M/32/14 Healthier YOU Project – Awarded £1360.00
M/31/14 Spotland Community Association Newsletter/Prospectus – Awarded £660.00
M/75/11 Sewing Classes - Awarded £700.00
M/74/11 Cookery & Arts – Awarded £300.00
M/71/11 Cooker - Awarded £550.00
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?
Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?

The main aim of the project;















To create a more Digitally Inclusive society
Not only to provide Basic ICT support to local service users but to make them aware and up
to speed with Social Media and its benefits
Increase ICT literacy
A more confident community around ICT
How to learn English (for non English speakers) online
Helping people access mainstream services in a friendly, comfortable and non-threatening
environment
Increasing Job Opportunities
Social Media pitfalls – negative aspects/online dangers
Encourage the development of mutual understanding – initiatives which begin the process of
developing friendships
Regular interactions bringing people together and encouraging families and individuals to
come together to share life – building flourishing and sustainable friendships and
relationships.
Classes will be tailored to clients needs
The sessions will run on a weekly basis (2hrs per week) for 6 months at Spotland
Community Association
Classes will focus on social media, emailing, Facebook, Twitter, dangers of online services,
online banking, how to pay bills, apply for jobs online etc…
Build a strong network for the community where they can access ICT training and go on
further to look for Training & Employment.

Project start date

06/01/2020

Project completion
Pagedate
85

06/07/2020
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£1,800.00

b) Amount of grant required

£1,800.00

c) Amount from other sources

£0

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations will be required
for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money. Costs
for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue and
Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Tutor Fees: £20.00per hour x 2hrs per session per week x 24 weeks

£960.00

£10.00 admin. fee per session x 24 weeks

£240.00

£10.00 per hour room hire (48 hours)

£480.00

Refreshments 6 months = £120.00

£120.00

Page 86

TOTAL

£1,800.00
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Asghar Ali

Full name

Abdul Ghaffar

Position

Manager

Position

Treasurer

Date

09/10/2019

Date

09/10/2019

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form to:
Rochdale Township Office, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924802
Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 87

Form RT03

QUOTE
FAO: SPOTLAND COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION 92-96 SPOTLAND ROAD, ROCHDALE OL12 6PJ 01706 354 151

Course Duration: 6 months
Hourly Rate: £20.00
Per month: £160.00
Total: £960.00
Wajid Mahmood

Page 88
Goingdigital@hotmail.com

APPENDIX 4B

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2019/20
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/21/19

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

ROCHDALE TRY

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
(1) To promote community participation in healthy recreation by providing facilities for the playing of Rugby
League within the community of Rochdale Borough and other sports capable of improving health.
(2) To provide and assist in the provision of facilities for recreation and other leisure time occupation of such
persons who have need for such facilities by reason of youth, age, ill health, disability, financial hardship,
poverty or social and economic disadvantage or the public at large in the interest of social welfare and with
the object of improving their conditions of life.
(3) To help young people, especially but not exclusively through leisure time activities so as to develop their
capabilities that they may grow to full maturity as individuals and members of society.

d) Contact name

Julie Durrant

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode

Crown Oil Stadium, Sandy Lane, Rochdale. OL11 5DR

g) Email address
h) Web address

Hornetsrugbyleague.co.uk/foundation

Page 89
Form RT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
W/42/18 & M/53/18 Castleton Junior Hornets – Grant £1,500
CE/22/18 Spotland Junior Hornets – Grant £1,000
RP/04/18 League for Life (Rochdale Township) – Grant £4,250
HP/19/18 League for Life (Heywood Township) – Grant £4,250
MP/06/18 League for Life (Middleton Township) – Grant £4,250
PF/05/18 League for Life (Pennines Township) – Grant £4,250
Additional information entered by the Township Office from their records:
W/39/16 Rochdale Hornets Wheelchair Rugby – Grant £3,324.82
RP/06/16 Origin Series 2017 (Rochdale Township) – Grant £4,360
HP/25/16 Origin Series 2017 (Heywood Township) – Grant £4,400
MP/10/16 Origin Series 2017 (Middleton Township) – Grant £4,360
PF/08/16 Origin Series 2017 (Pennines Township) – Grant £4,360
RP/15/15 Origin Series 2016 (Rochdale Township) – Grant £4,800
HP/17/15 Origin Series 2016 (Heywood Township) – Grant £4,800
PF/20/15 Origin Series 2016 (Pennines Township) – Grant £4,800
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

Page 90
Form RT03

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
Background:
In 2021 Rugby League World Cup (RLWC2021) will be taking place across the country between 23rd of
October and the 27th of November 2021. Sixteen teams will participate in the 2021 Tournament. An iconic
event set to be the biggest and best Rugby League World Cup in history.
In the same year Rochdale Hornets Rugby League Club will also be 150 years old – one of the oldest sports
clubs in the borough.
Using the inspiration of this event and the lead up to a very important year for Rochdale Hornets we want to
start to get ‘more young people involved and playing Rugby League more often’, raise the profile of the
sport in the borough and at the same time encourage our local schools to sign up to the resources and
promote the RLWC2021 Education Resources as part of our schools work through our exciting Rochdale
TRY Programme.
Details: The Rochdale TRY Programme will provide:


A series of high-quality rugby league afterschool coaching sessions (extra-curricular) in primary and
secondary schools as per attached list
 Raise the profile of the RLWC2021 in the borough by encourage local schools to sign up to the RFL
resources and promote RLWC2021 Education Recourses as part of any future school delivery
educational programmes. Not only do we want to deliver high quality coaching sessions across our
Rochdale borough schools we want to ensure the schools continue to use the resources to help
provide additional support to schools and schoolteachers who are otherwise unfamiliar with rugby
league. These free resources are a fantastic guide to help support teachers deliver rugby league
and can be adapted to best suit the needs of the playing group. The Education programme also
offers free access to resources and offer and updates of relevant World Cup activities. This will be
done through various interventions with schools at school assemblies/other school time: see
attached list
 Support the development of a pre match Junior Hornet 150 Club at Rochdale Hornets at every
home game with 150 children from the borough, across the 4 townships taking part. The club will be
the community setting where we signpost all the interest young people from the school programme
to become lifelong supporters of rugby league and Rochdale Hornets and players of the future.
Target 150 children to attend a game at hornets and be part of our 150 club.
Benefits this programme will bring:
 We know we can evidence that creating school/club link leads to increased participation and children
become healthier, confident and resilient.
 Increase the awareness and profile of the RLWC 2021 across school children in the borough Without our intervention schools will probably not take part or sign up to grow the interest without our
partnership approach.
 Increase in the number of schools delivering Rugby League
 Increase number of young people playing Rugby League
 Establish a brand-new Junior Hornet Club that will see 150 young people across the 4 townships be
accommodated in a safe place environment every time the team have a home fixture.
 To leave a long-lasting legacy for Rugby League in the borough

Page 91
Form RT03

Need for the Programme:










If we don’t get support from the Township we will not be able to raise the profile of the RLWC2021 in
the borough of Rochdale and support schools to sign up to the Educational Resources available to
them. Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation are the best placed organisation to be able to do this
with schools. We have 2 full-time dedicated rugby league qualified coaches. The work with schools
needs to be done in 2020 in order to start and build the momentum of the RLWC2021.
There are currently only 3 rugby clubs in the borough, compared to 8 clubs 10 years ago- Rochdale
Mayfield ARLFC, Rochdale Cobras and Littleborough Junior RL Club – if we don’t continue to offer
Rugby League to primary aged school children this sport is in danger of being lost in the borough
forever. We need to put in place more interventions to ensure that Rugby League is continued to be
supported and delivered to young people of the borough – what better way to do this than using the
power of the RLWC2021 and the celebration of Rochdale Hornets Rugby League Club being 150
years old.
We need to ensure we signpost children from the programme into activities outside of school
curriculum time to keep the interest and this can only be done through extra curriculum activity and
also signposting to our Junior Hornet 150 Club and the 3 rugby league clubs in the borough.
The Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation is the charitable arm of Rochdale Hornets Rugby Club.
With the support of the Township we can continue to ensure Rugby league is a sport young people
choose to do in the borough.
To ensure we offer to support young people into rugby league and taking a step into an active
lifestyle.

Project start date

January 2020

Project completion
date

December 2020

Page 92
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£5,047.50

b) Amount of grant required

£4,025.00

c) Amount from other sources

£1,022.50

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Rochdale Hornets Sporting
Foundation

Rochdale Hornets Rugby Club

What they may fund
Equipment for the programme
Equipment – balls and coaching
materials @ £1000.00 (divided x
4)

Dates of funding decisions
£250.00

FREE Match Tickets, Room Hire
at Stadium, staff on match days
3090.00/4 townships

£772.50

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations will be required
for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money. Costs
for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue and
Customs).
Expenditure item








Cost

Cost of extra curriculum coaching provision over 27 weeks – 1
coach x 1 hour per day x 4 days @ £25 per hour x 27 weeks
(covering 20 schools as per attached)
Cost of delivering in schools assemblies – 1 coach @ £25 per
hour x 1 hour x 36 schools
Marketing material for RLWC2021 and Junior Hornets
Programme – cost and design of leaflets and social media
adverts, printing of leaflets (£950.00 divided x 4 townships)
Free Match Tickets to Rochdale Hornets x 150 children £5 per
ticket 750.00, Hire of room at Rochdale Hornets on match day
13 match days x £20 per hour x 3 hours 780.00 , 2 coaches x 3
hours x 13 @ £20.00 per hour 1560.00 (total 3090.00 divided
/per 4 townships )
Certificates and medals @ £5 per child x 150 (£750.00 divided
x 4)
Equipment – balls and coaching materials @ £1000.00
(divided x 4)

2700.00

TOTAL

5047.50

Page 93

900.00

237.50

772.50

187.50
250.00

Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Julie Durrant

Full name

Niel Wood

Position

Foundation Manager

Position

Chair of Board

Date

12th November 2019

Date

12th November 2019

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form to:
Rochdale Township Office, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924802
Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 94

Form RT03

LIST OF SCHOOLS

NOTE

Rochdale North Township (16 schools)
Name
All Saints CE Primary School
Caldershaw Primary School
Greenbank Primary School
Healey Primary School
Heybrook Primary School
Meanwood Community Primary School
Norden Community Primary School
Shawclough Community Primary School
Spotland Primary School
St Patrick's RC Primary School
St Vincent's RC Primary School
Whittaker Moss Primary School
Falinge Park High School
Oulder Hill Community School and Language College
Redwood School
Brownhill School

All the schools on this list will be targeted with the RLWC 2021
Education Recourses
The schools highlighted will be the 20 schools (10 per township)
we will target with the extra-curricular activity
January – February 5 schools over 7 weeks
February – Easter 5 schools over 7 weeks
Easter – May 5 schools over 7 weeks
May – July 5 schools over 7 weeks
Total 20 schools over 27 weeks

Rochdale South Township (20 schools)
Name
Ashfield Valley Primary School
Bamford Academy
Belfield Primary School
Brimrod Community Primary School
Broadfield Community Primary School
Castleton Primary School
Deeplish Primary Academy
Holy Family RC Primary School
Lowerplace Primary School
Marland Hill Community Primary School
Sacred Heart RC Primary School
Sandbrook Community Primary School
St Edward's CE Primary School
St Gabriel's RC Primary School
St John's RC Primary School
St Mary's CE Primary School
St Peter's CE Primary School
Kingsway Park High School
Matthew Moss High School
St Cuthbert’s RC Business and Enterprise College

Pennines Township (17 schools)
Name
Crossgates Primary School
Holy Trinity CE Primary School
Littleborough Community Primary School
Milnrow Parish CE Primary School
Moorhouse Primary School
Smithy Bridge Foundation Primary School
St James CE Primary School
St Mary's RC Primary School, Littleborough
Stansfield Hall CE Primary School
Hollingworth Academy
Newhey CP School
St Andrew's CE Primary School
St Thomas CE Primary School
Springfield School
Hamer Community School
Kentmere Academy
Alice Ingham RC Primary School

All the schools on this list will be targeted with the RLWC 2021
Education Recourses
All 10 schools will be targeted with extra-curricular activity
January – February 3 schools over 7 weeks
February – Easter 3 schools over 7 weeks
Easter – May 2 schools over 7 weeks
May – July 2 schools over 7 weeks
Total 10 schools over 27 weeks

Page 95

Sharron Worrall
Townships Business Officer
Neighbourhood Services
Rochdale Borough Council
Floor 3, Number One Riverside
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU
Wednesday 30th October 2019
Dear Sharron
Re: Costs for Township Funding - TRY PROGRAMME
Further to our recent application I can confirm that the costs incurred by Rochdale Hornets
Sporting Foundation and Rochdale Hornets for the TRY Pogramme, will be as follows:



Equipment – balls and coaching
materials @ £1000.00 (divided x 4)
Free Match Tickets to Rochdale
Hornets x 150 children £5 per ticket
750.00, Hire of room at Rochdale
Hornets on match day 13 match
days x £20 per hour x 3 hours
780.00, 2 coaches x 3 hours x 13 @
£20.00 per hour 1560.00 (total
3090.00 divided /per 4 townships )
TOTAL

250.00
772.50

£1,022.50

Yours sincerely

Julie Durrant
Foundation Manager

Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation, Spotland Stadium, Willbutts Lane, ROCHDALE. OL11 5DR
Tel:
Email:
web: www.rochdalehornets.co.uk
Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation a registered charity 1159601

Page 96

QUOTE

BILL TO
Rochdale Hornets
Julie Durrant
Crown Oil Arena
Sandy Lane
Rochdale, OL11 5DR

Service
Design and Artwork
Marketing material for Rochdale Hornets Sporting
Foundation RLWC2021 and Junior Hornets
Programme –design and printing of leaflets, design
of social media adverts.

Estimate Number: 0001218
Estimate Date: October 25, 2019
Expires On: December 24, 2019
Grand Total (GBP): £950.00

Quantity
1

Page 97

Price

Amount

£950.00

£950.00

Total:

£950.00

Grand Total (GBP):

£950.00

Quotations for TOWNSHIP FUND – TRY PROGRAMME

Certificates and medals @ £5 per
child x 150 (£750.00 divided x 4)
Medals from amazon
Certificates from instaprint
Equipment – balls and coaching
materials @ £1000.00 (divided x
4)

https://www.amazon.co.uk/s?k=medals&ref=nb_sb_noss_2
https://www.instantprint.co.uk/businessstationery/certificates
https://www.ramrugby.co.uk/collections/rugby-trainingequipment

Balls
Cones
Tag Belts
Bibs
Agility Ladder
Crazy Catch wildchild

Page 98

Page 99

Page 100

Page 101

APPENDIX 4C

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2019/20
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/22/19

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Drumming/Cultural Group Workshop

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Nigeria Community Association

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides

Nigeria Community Association Promotes Identity Culture and Stronger Community, through community
projects focused on Reaching out to people.
We aim to bring life to the entire Manchester Community especially the Rochdale Community. We also
aim to end loneliness, depression and change the lives of those affected by it.
To support and empower the Community Asylum seekers and the deprived in the Community by educating
training and rendering services for Community integration, to support celebrate the potential in our
people and empower them.

d) Contact name

Mary Adekugbe

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

www.ncaro.co.uk

Page 102
Form RT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
We have applied for couples of community Engagement fund on the 21st of December 2018 and 18th of
June 2019.
Information provided by the Township Office from their records:
M/15/19 Nigeria Independence Day Celebration – Grant awarded £750 in September 2019
RP/07/19 Rochdale Holiday Jamboree – Grant awarded £1,342.47 in July 2019
CE/18/18 Nigeria Community Association Launch – Grant awarded £1,000 in January 2019
CG/12/18 Clean & Green – Grant refused £2,500 in February 2019
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
African culture has always been a huge part of our lives - you have no idea how excited we are to share this
music concert with you in 2020!
We will be unveiling our African-inspired music concert right within the heart of Greater Manchester.
This initiative will increase opportunities for engaging residents widely and build the capacity of those willing
and interested to act in ways which can aid wider community benefits.
All the Drumming is west African base, technic rhythms, timing song and dance. We hope the Team to build
confidence and to learn the cultures around the world. The project will be open to wider community from age
3years to 16 years and beyond.
We will engage with other communities and perform at events and carnivals to show the community our
progress.
Drumming gives us an experience where we can be free to connect with ourselves and others, in order to
release, restore and heal. It is a universal language where all people can be a part, free from words and
concepts so we can experience life with an open heart.
Drumming supports individuals, families and communities during times of joy, sadness and change. As we
drum together the rhythm can bring us closer to one another with respect and courage as we move towards
healing wounds and restoring hope.
The rise in anti-social behaviour among youths and the weekly reported knife crimes among black youths
across Manchester , are approximately 80% of gang members are black, has have served to influence the
organisation’s interest, determination and commitment to providing a more hands-on involvement in matters
relevant to the development of our local community.
Report reveals family members remain influential in shaping young people’s cultural consumption.

Page 103

Form RT03

Young people are four times more likely to consume culture with family members than through school.
Despite this, schools are key to engaging young people and helping to “broaden perceptions of arts and
culture”. It recommends engaging children from as young an age as possible.
Other recommendations include embracing young people’s wider definitions of culture and creating more
opportunities for them to be creative digitally.
The report also suggests ensuring venues “create a space and balance between stimulating activities and
programming, alongside relaxing and welcoming spaces,” so they appeal to young people on a social level.
This initiative will increase opportunities for engaging residents widely and build the capacity of those willing
and interested to act in ways which can aid wider community benefits.
The service users and parents in the community brought this great idea.

Project start date

January 2020

Project completion
date

June 2020

Page 104
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£3000.00

b) Amount of grant required

£3000.00

c) Amount from other sources

£ Nil

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations will be required
for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money. Costs
for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue and
Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Tutors Cost

Six Months Project 25 Sessions X £50

£1,250.00

Drums

2 Congas X £300.00

£ 600.00

7 School Djembe Drum sets

£ 553.00

Publicity

Flyers/Advert

£ 250.00

Refreshment

Tea, Coffee, Sugar, Juice, Biscuits

£ 347.00

Page 105

TOTAL

£3,000.00
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Mary Adekugbe

Full name

Position

Founder/Chairperson

Position

Date

11/11/2019

Date

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form to:
Rochdale Township Office, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924802
Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 106

Form RT03

Page 107

Page 108

Page 109

Page 110

Page 111

Page 112

Page 113

Page 114

Page 115

Page 116

APPENDIX 4D

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2019/20
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/23/19

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Multicultural Parade

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Nigeria Community Association

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides

Nigeria Community Association Promotes Identity Culture and Stronger Community, through
community projects focused on Reaching out to people.
We aim to bring life to the entire Manchester Community especially the Rochdale Community. We
also aim to end loneliness, depression and change the lives of those affected by it.
To support and empower the Community Asylum seekers and the deprived in the Community by
educating training and rendering services for Community integration, to support celebrate the
potential in our people and empower them.

d) Contact name

Mary Adekugbe

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

www.ncaro.co.uk

Page 117
Form RT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

We have applied for couples of community Engagement fund on the 21st of December 2018 and
18th of June 2019.
Information provided by the Township Office from their records:
M/15/19 Nigeria Independence Day Celebration – Grant awarded £750 in September 2019
RP/07/19 Rochdale Holiday Jamboree – Grant awarded £1,342.47 in July 2019
CE/18/18 Nigeria Community Association Launch – Grant awarded £1,000 in January 2019
CG/12/18 Clean & Green – Grant refused £2,500 in February 2019
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?

Multicultural Parade is the world pride, a Festival to put diversity on display. To promote Love &
Peace through Music. It has everything from beautiful dancers and marching bands, to magnificent
floats.
These performers will envelope the Park with spectacular colour and sounds. There will be flag
waving crowds dazzling by beautiful costumes and an ensemble of musicians that will march in the
Parade.
The aim of this event is for all Countries, Groups, Community Organisations, Charity Organisation,
Faith Groups, Uniformed Groups, in our community to stand together for peace, love, and unity and
fly their country flags, to showcase Cultural differences.
Field events followed, with Stalls, Games, Mini Olympics, Face painting, DJ, Networking, Talent
Show.
We intend to create enough awareness in Greater Manchester particularly in Rochdale about
understanding and mutual respect for all cultures and use this platform to work efficiently with other
organisations within Rochdale Borough.
This event is open to all age groups and different backgrounds from all over Greater Manchester
and beyond.

Project start date

10Th May 2020

Project completion
date

10Th May 2020

Page 118
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£2,206:00

b) Amount of grant required

£2,206:00

c) Amount from other sources

£ Nil

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations will be required
for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money. Costs
for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue and
Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Publicity

£ 600.00

DJ

£ 350.00

Photographer

£ 250.00

Country Flags 5FT by 3FT 30 Countries @ £22.50

£ 675.00

Bounty 100 Countries Flag Bunting X 20 @ £6.55

£ 131.00

Potable Loo X 2 @ £ 100:00

£ 200.00

Page 119

TOTAL

£2,206.00
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Mary Adekugbe

Full name

Position

Founder/Chairperson

Position

Date

11/11/2019

Date

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form to:
Rochdale Township Office, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924802
Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 120

Form RT03

Page 121

Page 122

Invoice from the photographer for a similar event in lieu of a quote as the applicant has been unable
to contact him as he is out of the country at this time.

Page 123

Page 124

Page 125

Page 126

APPENDIX 4E

RP/26/19

Page 127

Page 128

Page 129

Page 130

Page 131

Page 132

Page 133

Page 134

Page 135

APPENDIX 4F

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale

Name of Request Originator

Norden Ward Councillors

Project Manager & Ext

Chris Highton – Ext 4360

Township Ref

Service Ref

W/35/19

Completed by

Date Completed

12/11/19

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Norden Village CCTV

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Provision of a monitored CCTV system on Edenfield Road, Norden
(vicinity of Norden News and Co-op shop) to deter anti-social
behaviour/criminal activity within Norden Village and provide a safer
environment for the local community. The Council’s Street Lighting
Section to arrange the replacement of column 107 on Edenfield Road
with a 10 metre heavy duty column with socket outlet to accommodate
the CCTV camera and existing bus stop and mandatory parking
signage. The future maintenance of the system will be covered by
CCTV maintenance contract facilitated by Rochdale Council’s
Community Safety Section.
Reduction of incidents of anti-social behaviour/criminal activity in
Norden Village.

Township Priorities Met

People and place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Revenue

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
Estimated cost based on similar CCTV systems procured by Rochdale Council’s Community Safety
Section.

Risks that may change estimate

Total Estimated Fees

£

Total Estimated Works Costs

£

Total Cost

£10,000

Amount Approved by Township

£

Page 136

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date
(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence

Completion Date
Evidence

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 137

APPENDIX 4G

Page 138

£9,935.04

Page 139

Page 140

Appendix 1

Page 141

APPENDIX 4H

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Rana

Project Manager & Ext

M. Aiken

Completed by

P. McCaffrey

Township Ref

Service Ref

TC/21/19

Date Completed

10/10/19

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

New salt bin request for No 1 Clement Royds Street, Rochdale

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

Provide and install new salt bin

Scheme comments from
Highways

N/A

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Grit bin at the optimum location to enable treatment of roads at critical
points, whilst making sure it does not impede pedestrian flow.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
Bin will be re-filled up to weekly as necessary for at least one winter season.

Risks that may change estimate
n/a

Total Estimated Fees
Total Estimated Works Costs
**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period
Amount Approved by Township

£1,006.46

Page 142

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date
(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
eg start within two months of receiving commission. Evidence: fees being expended on system.

Completion Date
Evidence
eg completion within six months of start date. Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of
final account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 143

APPENDIX 4I

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Rana

Project Manager & Ext

M. Aiken

Completed by

P. McCaffrey

Township Ref

Service Ref

TC/22/19

Date Completed

10/10/19

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

New salt bin request for Rooley Moor Road Junction of Fern Hill Lane,
Rochdale

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

Provide and install new salt bin

Scheme comments from
Highways

Rooley Moor Road is on the standard gritting route – Fern Hill is an
unadopted road.

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Grit bin at the optimum location to enable treatment of roads at critical
points, whilst making sure it does not impede pedestrian flow.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council and Private

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
Bin will be re-filled up to weekly as necessary for at least one winter season.

Risks that may change estimate
n/a

Total Estimated Fees
Total Estimated Works Costs
**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period
Amount Approved by Township

£1,006.46

Page 144

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date
(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
eg start within two months of receiving commission. Evidence: fees being expended on system.

Completion Date
Evidence
eg completion within six months of start date. Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of
final account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 145

APPENDIX 4J

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale

Name of Request Originator

Norden Ward Councillors

Project Manager & Ext

Andy Collins 4546

Completed by

Andy Collins

Township Ref

Service Ref

TC/25/19

Date Completed

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Ashworth Road Deer Fencing

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

Installation of 1.8m high dear fencing along edge of the carriageway
south of the Scout Camp for a distance of 50m (the length of the new
wall at the original landslide) or 90m (as above but including an
additional 40m length of fencing on the northern side of the wall.

Scheme comments from
Highways

The fencing would have to be connected to the mass concrete wall by
way of brackets fixed to the wall (2 brackets at each post), the spacing
of the posts is expected to be 1.8m. The posts and brackets will be
galvanized steel to minimize maintenance costs. There will be wire
mesh infill between the posts. The face of the concrete wall is at an
incline and so the brackets will have to be designed to take this into
account so that the posts will be vertical when installed.
The proposed length of fencing on the approach to the concrete wall
will constructed using timber posts socketed into the ground with wire
mesh infill.
The fencing will help prevent fly tipping in this area

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Private

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
It’s assumed that any statutory undertakers apparatus will be unaffected by the proposed work.
Contractor to wear harnesses whilst fixing the fence to the concrete wall to reduce risk of falling down the
embankment.
Risks that may change estimate

Total Estimated Fees
Total Estimated Works Costs

Option 1: £640
Option 2: £873
Option 1: Fencing located along the concrete wall and
3m 146
either side of it: Total length 50m: Estimated Costs
Page
£6400

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

Option 2: as above plus an additional 40m of fencing to
the north of the wall: Total length 90m: Estimated Costs
£8970
Option 1: £6875
Option 2: £8730

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

Within 2 months of receiving commission

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
Work begins on site

Completion Date

3 days after commencement of work on site

Evidence
Works will be complete on site

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 147

APPENDIX 4K

TC/28/19

Place

Page 148

xxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxx & Communities Manager

Page 149

Page 150

Page 151

Page 152

Page 153

